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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

We hope all of you and your near and dear ones are safe and healthy in these unprecedented
and challenging times. This year has thrown surprises for which few were prepared. Leave
aside companies, some entire economies and industries have experienced continued stress
and have been set back by multiple years. It is with great pleasure, then, that we inform you
that we have grown by 30% in these times and come out with industry leading asset quality.
The operations have been further strengthened as have the partner relations.

We expanded operations into Haryana to grow from 119 branches in FY20 to 132 in FY21.
The Asset Under Management grew by 30% from Rs 476 Cr to Rs 623 Cr while borrower base
increased from 187,502 to 217,875. Through careful planning and execution, PAT increased
more than three-fold from Rs. 4.02 Cr to Rs. 12.73 Cr. Capital Adequacy Ratio was main-
tained at comfortable levels and was at 19.27% by close of the year, well above the stipulated
minimum RBI requirements of 15%. team strength increased from 1055 in FY20 to 1227 in
FY21. In addition, we are very happy that despite severe credit crunch in the market, we
have increased our lender base to 41 lenders, including 16 banks and key new lenders such as
SIDBI, Mudra, HDFC and Incofin. The cost of funds has been reduced by more than 2% over
the last two financial years and we continue to strive to minimize the same. The most
interesting aspect of our performance is the asset quality, which stands right at the top of the
industry. As of 31" Mar 2021, PAR 90 (90 days overdue) was at 0.85% compared to 10.57% of
the industry.

Light Microfinance was set up with a solid foundation of values and a large vision. We had
begun our journey with a mission to offer the financially excluded sections of India with
cost-effective, timely, humane, and technology-driven efficient products and services with
world class standards. We have always kept our customers and employees central to every
decision and that is exactly how we overcame the challenges created by the Covid-19 pan-
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demic and delivered industry transcending performance. This is due only to the passionate,
committed, talented, driven, and innovative team that you have invested in and who knows
how to work as a team to convert adversity into opportunity and to translate our long-term
vision and mission into daily execution on the ground. This is a team we are proud of. This is
our team.

It gives us great pleasure to say that on the strength of its Management team, Governance
structure, operations, and potential for future growth, we signed on three global, high qual-
ity private equity investors last year. Rs. 25 Cr was received as first tranche in FY20 while
balance investment of Rs 48 Cr was under process for regulatory approval. Though the
process was delayed due to covid-19 situation, the investors remained completely commit-
ted. The process finally closed in Jul21. This is a seminal moment in the growth path of Light
Microfinance because this is the first round of equity financing that the Company has raised
from institutional private equity investors. They bring world class experience and expertise
in microfinance and financial inclusion, with particular focus on social impact that is
completely copacetic with the mission, values and the soul of Light Microfinance. We are
proud to have them as our partners in this exciting and impactful journey and look forward
to working closely with them in the coming years.

The ongoing Covid-19 pandemic in the world and particularly in India has hit the global
economy very hard. The type, speed and scale of impact has been unprecedented in the last
100 years. India's GDP contracted by 7.3% in FY21 as per Government data. While the econ-
omy is expected to grow by 8.8-9% as per CARE Ratings, the crisis is not yet over with a
severe second wave hitting India in Apr-Jun 2021 and expectation of a third wave in Sep-Nov
2021 is being put out. The Governments, Central and State, along with RBI moved in tandem
to create adequate medical and financial support for the economy but recovery is yet to
complete. We expect the situation to continue easing over the next 6-9 months as vaccination
drive picks up (nearly 41 Cr vaccine doses have been administered as of Jul21) and compa-
nies and people become more adept at managing operations and liquidity in light of restric-
tions.

We are fully seized of the situation and are thoroughly prepared to deal with it on every
front - people, operations as well as finance. We responded within days of the lockdown
announcement and enabled its entire digital platform infrastructure for our committed teams
to work from home with full functionality without compromising on cyber security. Work
from home requires handling a new set of challenges, including information security, a
reconfigured infrastructure and vulnerability to phishing attacks. Cyber security and
Business Continuity were both top priorities. Light runs processes that are largely system
driven, thus all changes to the controls and processes were strictly implemented and moni-
tored and were found to be operating effectively. It is thanks largely to the investments that
the Company has made in technology over the years that it was able to respond to the new
lockdown situation with agility. While the field operations were severely affected because of
strict lockdowns at every level, the head office continued to work and the management




(¢ Light

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

MICROFINANCE

swung into action to put some new processes and HR practices in place, including training,
new social-distancing protocols for health and safety and establishing communications with
our customers to ensure their well-being. This investment in the people gave excellent results
as an energized and newly trained team swung into action as soon as the lockdown started
opening.

Even as the operations of the Company were under strict control and monitoring, our com-
pany has always had its Asset-Liability Management on top of the radar. The static liquidity
assessment and dynamic liquidity assessment was done daily to ensure that the Company
was always comfortable with respect to its liquidity and financial obligations. The second
wave, while severe in its human toll, presented lesser challenge operationally as we had
anticipated the same and, in fact, had in advance moved to Work from Home. It was, how-
ever, a difficult period mentally for all as many of our employees as they or their near and
dear ones got infected. 132 of our employees and 47 family members got infected. We lost 2
employees and 4 family members of our employees to Covid-19. Up to 5% of our borrowers
also experienced incidences of infection in their families. Despite the challenges, the team
came out prepared - ample liquidity in hand and in pipeline and on the back of solid asset
quality - and successfully continued disbursements while ensuring collections remained
stable. The customers and employees are once again shining and enabling us to recover
much faster and better than industry. You have invested in a world class team with a can-do
attitude.

In all of this, we are truly grateful to all our stakeholders for supporting, helping, advising
and guiding the Company in this exhilarating journey - our esteemed lenders, our investors,
our directors, our advisors, our partners, our employees and above all our customers. We can
never thank each and every one of them enough. It is our stakeholders who will prepare and
propel the Company to its next stage of growth.

We continue to believe in the microfinance sector and the potential it holds for growth. Large
sections of India are still financially excluded and in dire need of intervention providing
large untapped headroom for growth. With its world class team, its various top-notch stake-
holders, its continuing investments in technology and innovations and a large values driven
vision, Light is strongly positioned to be the leader in the industry in the coming years. In
conclusion, we want to thank all our stakeholders for reposing faith in the Company, to all
our customers for their trust in us and to our invaluable team at Light Microfinance for their
hard work, passion and commitment to building a technology-driven, customer-first,
execution-oriented and values-driven company.

Deepak Amin Rakesh Kumar Aviral Saini
Managing Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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‘Sonalben's husband is a
factory worker and his
income was not enough to
run the household. So, she
decided to start her own
business of vegetable
vending and obtained a loan
from Light Microfinance.
She now sells vegetables
and contributes to the
family income that helps
provide a better [ife to her
children.”
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

GROWTH (SDG)
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EQUALITY

Sustainable Development Goal
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DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

i

100% Women
Borrowers
Empowering
more than 220k
rural women
through economic

Hospi- Cash
Product.
Providing health
insurance to all
the women
borrowers and
spouses to enable
healthier life.

35% Avg.
Increase in
Income
Providing last
mile access to
reliable and
scalable
capital.

Cerise Score :
Consumer
Protection: 94%
Non-
discriminatory
delivery of
service

imbibing

social cohesion.

97% Customer
Retention Rate
Enabling micro-
entrepreneurship
and better
standard of living
at Bottom of

Pyramid
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PERFORMANCE METRICS
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PERFORMANCE METRICS
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BUSINESS REVIEW DATA

PORTFOLIO DATA

Portfolio - End use Breakup (% Share)

m Agri & Allied ® Production ™ Trade & Services Others

Portfolio - Tenure wise Breakup (%Share)

0.8% 0.6%

m Upto 1 Year m >1 Year<=18 months
@ >18 months<=24 months >24 months

Portfolio - Cyclewise (in %Share)

M LoanCyclel m LoanCycle2 m Loan Cycle3
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OPERATIONAL FOOTPRINT

Rajasthan
Branches Loan Outstanding Disbursement
0 39.34% 1.36%

FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21
63 63 244 340 244 247
Gujarat

Branches Loan Outstanding Disbursement
9 22.49% -1.75%
FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21
51 42 209 256 190 187
Madhya Pradesh
Branches Loan Outstanding Disbursement
8 42.11% -4.78%

FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21
5 13 19 27 20 19
Haryana

Branches Loan Outstanding Disbursement
13 NA NA
FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21
0 13 0 0 0 0

a
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Deepak Amin Rakesh Kumar Aviral Saini
Managing Director CEO & Executive Director CFO & Executive Director

Anuj Kumar Mukesh M. Shah Chandan Sinha

Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Light Microfinance as assiduously built a world class management team together with top-
notch governance through a board that is comprised of world class directors with a breadth
of experience and knowledge that is difficult to find from a private equity and banking
professional and leading Chartered Accountant to a former RBI executive and private equity
investors. All together bring a breadth of experience spanning from banking, regulations,
compliance, governance, investment, equity, risk management, technology, innovation,
operations, and microfinance.

Sr.no. | Name Designation Department

1 Satish Dhupdale Chief Digital Officer Information
technology

2 Nehal Shah Senior. Vice President Operation

Amit Sugandhi Vice President Information

technology

4 Nisarg Shah Vice President Accounts

5 Anuja Kochhar Assistant Vice President HR & Admin

6 Jayesh Dave Assistant Vice President Credit

7 Ankur Singhal Assistant Vice President Finance

8 Madhavi Gajjar Company Secretary and Compliance

compliance officer
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“Kala Bai is a widow and
lives along with her 3 sons.

She along with one of the
sons are the earning
members in the house. She is
into agriculture business.

One year back, she
undertook, loan from Light
Microfinance to expand her
business and since than her
income has doubled. Kala
Bai states that LIGHT has
helped her improve financial
situation, [iving standard
and more importantly
helped her in expanding the
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COVID-19 RESPONSE

The COVID-19 pandemic has unleashed a global health emergency that has led to an economic crisis
of historic magnitude. India, as a nation, has stood firmly to manage the unprecedented challenge
caused by COVID-19 infections, with both government and non-governmental support augmenting
preventive and therapeutic health-care facilities, diagnostic and research facilities, and tracking
services, to minimize the loss of human life. While India managed to contain the virus in the first
wave in early 2020 through various interventions including a nationwide lockdown, the economy
was expected to contract by 8% in 2020-21. The second wave is now sweeping through the
country — the shortage of essential medical supplies such as oxygen, hospital beds, and vaccines has
reached a critical level. To help the country through the ongoing second wave of the pandemic,
banks and other financial institutions are working quickly to redeploy funds from existing projects
and accelerate disbursements to help the government procure much-needed medical equipment,
supplies, and emergency support.

During the 1" wave and now the 2™ wave, we maintained the calmness of mind, identified, and
prioritized the list of activities and put them into action with effective monitoring. We had put in
place technology led Business Continuity plan before the lockdown was imposed. We had clear
imperatives a) Employee Safety & Outreach b) Customer Safety & Outreach c) Liquidity Preservation
d) Compliance and everything else.

a) Employee Safety & Outreach:

The primary focus was to ensure people feel secure, both health-wise and financially. As a first
step, all employees were brought on call to explain necessary preventive measures to be
undertaken considering Covid-19 pandemic. Secondly, they were assured of their jobs and
salaries. With these two key concerns out of the way, people came into the right frame of mind
to deliver on organizational imperatives. They were then trained to work from home and
engaged by their managers to ensure they understand priorities. Work Update calls, Daily
work status were tracked to ensure smooth functioning and achievement of objectives.
Employees were engaged regularly through virtual townhalls and motivational videos. All
the employees were extended support from the management, given handholding in Work
from Home environment where the tasks were prioritized, and approached with empathy.
Upon opening of lockdown, branch infrastructures were kept sanitized, and all necessary
protocols were followed.

b) Customer Safety & Outreach:

Customer safety was of utmost importance as 90% of our customers are rural and were,
initially, largely unaware, or ignorant of the pandemic. Getting the employees in the right
frame of mind quickly allowed us to reach out to all our customers and explain key
precautions necessary for them. Further, we explained to customers beforehand how the
moratorium announced by RBI would function. Continuous connect with the customers was
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maintained through IVR, audio messages, tele-calls, SMS and other media tools. This outreach
was appreciated significantly by our customers and was reflected in how they repaid in
Unlock.

Video capture of customer meetings mandated as additional controls to ensure right collection
through right treatment of clients and enable safety of employees as well.

Liquidity:

Financial services, specifically, NBFCs are conduits of money and sufficient liquidity always is
key to survival. We follow a very prudent ALM policy in maintaining a buffer, however, the
pandemic presented stress never experienced before. Sanctions were quickly drawn down as
indication of lockdown started coming in enabling us to start with over Rs 30 Cr in liquidity. All
vendor agreements were renegotiated to control expenses by almost 25%. With RBI circular on
moratorium, the Finance team reached out to all lenders to avail moratorium. Our strong
relationships came very handy in this situation. Liquidity assessment was done on daily basis till
situation came under control in Juy'20. We start paying full EMIs to all our lenders in Jul'20 which
was greatly appreciated by all.

With this approach, Light deftly managed the situation to outshine the industry trend by
achieving an AUM growth of 31% as against the industry's growth of 11.9%. It also managed to
keep the Portfolio at Risk at 2.6 % significantlylower thanindustry at19.5%.

Light /s Industry AUM (Cr.) Light ©/s Industry-PAR (%)

600 1.60%
500 1 40% \
o, 1.20%
100 :
H] [

*—|ndutry —a—Light PAR=30 AR>3

Light Indutr
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‘Seema Soni lives with her
husband, mother-in-law and 2
daughters. She along with her
husband and 1 daughter are the
earning member sin the house.
She is into Saree Selling
Business. She took, loan from

Light Microfinance 6 months S
back and since then have been
able to increase business size
significantly. Seema Soni states
that the Loan Officer from
Light briefed about the terms
conditions of the loan very well
and they have been collecting
the installment on time.”

L
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

To
The Members,
LIGHT MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Board of Directors (the “Board”) takes pleasure in presenting the 27t Directors Report of the
Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

% BUSINESS OVERVIEW:

Financial Year 2020-21 saw an increase in the profitability as compared to the previous year.
Light has experienced significant milestones as it continues to grow over the years and at this
stage Light is poised to move into diverse areas. Company will continue to expand its business
in existing territories and expand into new areas in the coming years to take advantage of
growth and business opportunities.

[Intentionally left blank]

)
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(All figures in INR)

Particulars F.Y.2020-21 | F.Y.2019-20
Revenue from Operations 1,12,25,78,619 73,92,81,611
Other Income 2,72,37,438 2,92,19,326
Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, Exceptional items 65,85,49,515 39,49,96,834
and Tax Expense
Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 98,54,813 74,38,437
Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional items and Tax Expense 64,86,94,702 38,75,58,397
Less: Finance Costs 48,92,77,454 33,63,87,168
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 15,94,17,248 511,71,229
Add/(less): Exceptional items ) )
Profit /loss before Tax Expense 15,94,17,247 511,71,229
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 3,21,28,753 1,09,60,249
Profit /loss for the year (1) 12,72,88,495 4,02,10,980
Total Comprehensive Income/loss (2) ) )
Total (1+2) 12,72,88,495 4,02,10,980
Balance of profit /loss for earlier years ) )
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve ) )
Less: Transfer to Reserves ) )
Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares ) )
Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares ) )
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax ) )
Balance carried forward 12,72,88,495 4,02,10,980
Earning per share:

1. Basic 1. 5.08 1. 1.6l

2. 3.78 2. 1.20

2. Diluted EPS

a
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Particulars March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 March 31, 2020

Shareholders’ Fund 86,03,93,569 543,805,964 371,615,583

N 2,27,94,18,612 1,728,355,313 894.438.815

on-current

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 2,77,80,10,535 1,458,366,433 1.042,654,668

Non-Current Assets 2,35,10,47,922 1,464,241,803 860.591.429

3,56,67,74,812 2,266,285,907 1,448,117,639

Current Assets

I 1,14,98,16,057 516,643,166 438,032,266
ncome

E 99,03,98,810 496,407,107 413,674,481
xpense

% RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

» Revenue:

During the year under review, the turnover of the Company has been increased by Rs.
38,13,15,120 an increase of 49.62% as compared to previous financial year. Your Company
posted a turnover of Rs. 1,14,98,16,057/- in the year ended on March 31, 2021, as compared
to Rs. 76,85,00,937/ - in the previous year.

> Profit:
During the year under review, profit of the Company has been increased by Rs. 8,70,77,515
an increase of 216.55% as compared to previous financial year. Your Company’s profit after
tax for the year ended on March 31, 2021 was recorded at Rs. 12,72,88,495/- as compared to
Rs. 4,02,10,980/ - in the previous year.

» Other Financial Highlights:

Other income was at Rs. 2,72,37,438 as against Rs. 2,92,19,326 in the previous year, primarily
on account of interest income.

Finance Cost was at Rs. 48,92,77,454 as against Rs. 33,63,87,168 in the previous year,
primarily on account of the higher loan balances and other finance costs.

Depreciation and amortisation were higher by Rs. 24,16,376 as compared to previous year.
The actual cost was at Rs. 98,54,813 as compared to Rs. 74,38,437 in the previous year.

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) for the year ended March 31, 2021 was at Rs. 5.08 as against
Rs. 1.61 in previous year. Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) for the year ended March 31,
2021 was at Rs. 3.78 as against Rs. 1.20 in previous year.
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The Board of Directors of the Company is confident that the Management of the company is

capable of taking the company forward in the coming financial year.

s COMPANY AFFAIRS:

Your Company proudly announces that during the year under review the Company has

crossed the asset size of Rs. 500 crore and as per RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial

Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, following mandatory committees are constituted by

the company:

Sr. | Name of Committee

no.

1 Audit Committee

2 Nomination and Remuneration committee
3 Risk Management Committee

4 IT strategy Committee

5 Asset liability committee

6 Internal investigation committee

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 IS SUMMARIZED IN
THE FOLLOWING TABLE:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

No. of Branches 135 119

Number of Members 225363 105792
Number of Employees 1222 1055
Number of States 4 3

Amount disbursed (Rs. in crores) Rs. 453.04 cr. Rs. 454.33 Cr
Portfolio Outstanding (Rs. in crores) Rs. 623.00 cr. Rs. 475.83 Cr

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL:

=  Authorised Share Capital:

During the year, the Authorised share capital was increased as mentioned below:

a
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Board AGM/EGM Old Increase in Authorised New

Meeting/Circular = Date authorised Share Capital Authorised

Resolution Date capital : Capital
Equity Preference

Board  Meeting  EGM  dated  79,50,00,000 - 1,00,00,000 | 89,50,00,000

dated 11.11.2020 | 21.12.2020

Board meeting EGM  dated | 89,50,00,000 2,00,00,000 | 4,50,00,000 | 154,50,00,000
dated 20.05.2021 | 15.06.2021

= Paid-up Share Capital

The changes in the paid-up share capital during the year are shown as unders:

. Meeting date Increase in Paid-up Share Capital | Total issued share Capital
_ as on March 31, 2021
Equity Preference
Share Allotment | - 1,00,00,000 | 43,31,58,000

Committee meeting dated
30.09.2020 for allotment of
Non-Convertible

Redeemable Preference
Shares
Share Allotment | - 90,22,209 ' 44,21,80,209

Committee meeting dated
26.06.2021 for allotment of
Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares Series

Al
Board meeting dated - (1,00,00,000) | 43,21,80,209
30.06.2021 for redemption
of Non-Convertible

Redeemable Preference
Shares

s DIVIDEND AND RESERVES:

In view of the fact that your Company is a rapidly growing company and constantly in need of
capital to fuel its growth, your Directors recommended against giving any dividend for the
financial year 2020-21.
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The Company has transferred Rs. 2,54,57,699/ - to the reserves during the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2021, in accordance with the provisions of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

The Board of Director approved declaration of interim dividend of Rs. 89,75,342/- in the board
meeting dated 30t June 2021 issued to WAAO Partners LLP- Non-Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shareholder.

As per RBI circular RBI/2021-22/59 DOR.ACC.REC.No.23/21.02.067/2021-22 dated June 24,
2021, we hereby provide following information regarding dividend declared during the
financial year

Accounting Net profit for the | Rate of dividend | Amount of Dividend Pay-
period * accounting period | (in %) dividend [in out ratio

[in INR.] INR.] (per cent)
Oct-20 to May-21 | 6,99,12,507.8474095 | 12% p.a. 89,75,342/ - 12.84%

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company during the
year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES:

During the year under consideration, the Company has not granted any Loans, guarantees or
has made any investment which requires disclosures under Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received necessary declarations from each independent director under
Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid
down in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

During the year under review, following changes occurred in the Management;
= Appointment of Mr. Mukesh Shah as an Additional Independent Director

Mr. Mukesh Shah was appointed as Additional Independent Director of the Company
vide circular resolution passed by the Company on 31st July, 2020. Necessary filing for
the same with Ministry of corporate affairs was done by the company on 05t August,
2020.

* Regularization of Mr. Mukesh Shah as Independent Director

Mr. Mukesh Shah was regularized in the Annual General Meeting of the Company Held
on 28th September 2020 as “Independent Director” of the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Section 161 of Companies Act, 2013. Necessary filing for the same with
Ministry of corporate affairs was done by the company on 07t October, 2020.

(]
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Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company

The following has been appointed Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company
vide resolution dated 04th September 2020:

(@) Mr. Rakesh Kumar (Chief Executive Officer)
(b) Mr. Aviral Saini (Chief Finance Officer)

Necessary filing for the same with Ministry of corporate affairs was done by the
company on 29th September2020.

Re-appointment of Mr. Anuj Kumar as Independent Director

Mr. Anuj Kumar was re-appointed as “Independent Director” of the Company on the
expiry of his first term of 5 years via Ordinary Resolution dated 21st December 2020 for
the second term of 5 years. Necessary filing for the same with Ministry of corporate
affairs was done by the company on 09t January 2021.

Appointment of Mr. Chandan Sinha as an Additional Independent Director

Mr. Chandan Sinha was appointed as Additional Independent Director of the Company
vide circular resolution passed by the Company on 20th May 2021. Necessary filing for
the same with Ministry of corporate affairs was done by the company on 27t May 2021.

In accordance with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has following Key
Management Personnel as on date of the Board Report.

SR.

NO.

1
2
3
4

NAME | DESIGNATION

Mr. Deepak Amin Managing Director
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Aviral Saini Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Madhavi Gajjar Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:

The Board of Directors have carried out an annual performance evaluation of Board, Board

Committees and Individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of Schedule VI of Companies
Act, 2013.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the board, after seeking inputs from all the
directors, on the basis of the criteria such as the board composition and structure,
effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from
the committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

The Board of Directors carried out the evaluation on the basis of different criteria i.e.
participation of Directors at Board/ Committee meetings, managing relationship, knowledge
and skill, ethics and contribution, composition and quality of Board, Board meeting and its
procedures, Board strategy and risk management, composition and duties of Committees.
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

Your Company continues to operate as a microfinance business and during the year under
review, there was no change in nature of the business of the Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Extract of the
Annual Return for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 made under the provisions of
Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as “Annexure A” attached herewith and which forms part
of this Report and annual return uploaded on the Company’s Website can be assessed at
https:/ /www.lightmicrofinance.com/

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter, inter-alia, to review the
routine and special business of the Company. The Board meetings are generally held at the
corporate office of the Company.

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 4 (Four) times. The
names of the members of the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings are as under:

Sr. Day and Rakesh | Aviral Anuj Kumar | Deepak Amin | Mukesh

No Date of BM | Kumar | Saini Shah

1 Tuesday, v v v 4 -%
30.06.2020

2 Friday, v 4 4 v v
04.09.2020

3 Wednesday, v v v v v
11.11.2020

4 Thursday, v 4 4 4 v
18.02.2021

* Mr. Mukesh Shah has been appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f. 30t July
2020. Therefore, he was not present in the Board meeting held on 30t June 2020.

% NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

During the year under review, Members of the Audit Committee of the Company met 4 (Four)
times. The names of the members of the Committee, their attendance at the Audit Committee
Meetings are as under:

Sr. Day and | Rakesh | Aviral Anuj Kumar | Deepak Amin | Mukesh

No Date of Kumar | Saini Shah
Meeting

1 Tuesday, v v v v -%
30.06.2020

2 Friday, v v 4 v v
04.09.2020

3 Wednesday, v v v v v
11.11.2020

4 Thursday, v v v 4 v
18.02.2021

* Mr. Mukesh Shah has been appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f. 30t July 2020.
Therefore, he was not present in the Audit Committee meeting held on 30t June 2020.

Light
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% NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE NOMINATION AND REMINERATION COMMITTEE

(NRCQC):

During the year under review, Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) of the Company met 01 (one) times. The names of the members of the Committee, their
attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings are as under:

Sr. Day  and | Rakesh | Aviral Anuj Kumar | Deepak Amin | Mukesh

No Date of  Kumar | Saini Shah
Meeting

1 Thursday, - - v - v
18.02.2021

s NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (RMC):

During the year under review, Members of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the
Company met 04 (Four) times. The names of the members of the Committee, their attendance at
the Risk Management Committee Meetings is as under:

Sr. Day and Date of Rakesh Aviral Saini | Anuj Kumar | Deepak
No Meeting Kumar Amin

1 Tuesday, 30.06.2020 v v v v

2 Friday, 04.09.2020 v v v v

3 Wednesday, 11.11.2020 v v v v

4 Thursday, 18.02.2021 v v v v

v NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE SECURITIES ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE (SAC):

During the year under review, Members of the Share Allotment Committee (SAC) of the
Company met 05 (Five) times. The names of the members of the Committee, their attendance at
the Share Allotment Committee Meetings is as under:

Sr. Day and Date of Meeting Rakesh Kumar | Aviral Saini | Deepak Amin
No

1 Tuesday, 11.08.2020 v v v

2 Monday, 24.08.2020 v v v

3 Wednesday, 30.09.2020 v v _

4 Monday, 12.10.2020 v v -

5 Tuesday, 31.03.2021 v v _

% NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE SHARES TRANSFER COMMITTEE (STC):

No share transfers were registered during the financial year - 2020-21.




ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

=(¢ Light

MICROFINANCE

s NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE (ICC):

During the year under review, Members of the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) of the
Company met 03 (Three) times. The names of the members of the Committee, their attendance
at the Internal Complaints Committee Meetings is as under:

Sr. | Day and Ms. Anuja | Ms. Ms. Vrunda | Dr. Gujarat = Rajasthan = Madhya
No Date of Kochhar | Madhavi @ Rawal- Rajeshwari = State State Pradesh
Meeting | -HR Head  Gajjar- Senior Narendran | Head | Head State

[Presiding = Company | Compliance | [External Head
officer] Secretary | Executive Member]
1 | Monday, Y v v v - - -
17.08.2020
2 | Friday, v v v - - - -
16.10.2020
3 | Thursday, v v v v v v v
21.01.2021

% NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF

THE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

COMMITTEE (CSRQ):

During the year under review, Members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSRC) of the Company met 01 (One) time. The names of the members of the Committee, their
attendance at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings is as under:

Sr. Day and Date of Rakesh | Aviral Deepak Mukesh Shah
No Meeting Kumar | Saini Amin
1 Thursday, 18.02.2021 | v/ v 4 4

% NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE ASSET LIABILITY COMMITTEE (ALCO):

During the year under review, Members of the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) of the
Company met 04 (Four) times. The names of the members of the Committee, their attendance at
the Asset Liability Committee Meetings is as under:

Sr. Day and Rakesh | Aviral Deepak Amin | Madhavi

No Date of  Kumar | Saini [MD] Gajjar
Meeting [CEO] [CFO] [CS]

1 Tuesday, v v v -
30.06.2020

2 Wednesday, v v - -
30.09.2020

3 Wednesday, v v - -
30.12.2020

4 Wednesday, v v - -
31.03.2021

(2]
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING [EGM]S:

During the year under review, Members of the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the
Company met 02 (Two) times:

Sr. Day and Date of EGM
No

1 Monday, 13.07.2020

2 Monday, 21.12.2020

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT AND ARRANGMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year ended 31st March 2021, the Company has not entered into any related party
transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is
not required. However, the disclosures of transactions with related party for the financial year,
as per Accounting Standard - 18 Related Party Disclosures is given in Note. No 21 (H) to the
Balance Sheet as on March 31st, 2021.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE:

Your Company is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to ensuring that the work
environment at all its locations is conducive to fair, safe and harmonious relations between
employees. It strongly believes in upholding the dignity of all its employees, irrespective of
their gender or seniority. Discrimination and harassment of any type are strictly prohibited.

The Company has in place an appropriate policy in accordance with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,
to prevent sexual harassment of its employees.

Your Company is in compliance with the provisions relating to Internal Complaints Committee
(ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company is having Committee named “Internal Complaints Committee” which was
created on January 01, 2019. The details of the Committee and their members are as under:

Members ' Designation

Mrs. Anuja Kochhar ' HR Head

Dr. Rajeshwari Narendran | External Member

Mrs. Madhavi Gajjar | Company Secretary

Mrs. Vrunda Rawal | Senior Compliance Executive

The designated email id for registering complaints for sexual harassment at workplace is
help@lightmicrofinance.com

The Company did not receive any complaints for the F.Y 2020-21.

The Company has also filed Annual Report for the calendar year ending 31st December 2020 as
required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act on 21st January 2021
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% AUDITORS:

1. Statutory Auditor:

A. At the Annual General Meeting held on 30t September 2016, M/s Kantilal Patel & Co.,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 104744w), Ahmedabad, were appointed as
statutory auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2021.

M/s Kantilal Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 104744W),
Ahmedabad, have completed their first term of 5 years and tenure as envisaged in
Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 and were eligible for re-appointment as Statutory
Auditors as per Companies Act 2013.

M/s Kantilal Patel & Co. have conducted statutory audit for the FY 2020-21 and have not
reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Auditors” Report on the accounts of the Company for the accounting year ended 31st
March 2021 is self-explanatory and do not call for further explanations or comments and
may be treated as adequate compliance of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

B. M/S CNK and Associates LLP, appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in
the Board meeting held on 19t August, 2021 as per Section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any enactment or modification thereof, to hold
the office from the conclusion of this 27th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of

30t Annual General Meeting of the Company, at a remuneration, to be decided by the
Board of Directors in consultation with the auditors plus applicable, read with the
Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, including any statutory service tax and
reimbursement of traveling and out of pocket expenses incurred by them for the purpose
of the audit.

2. Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of
Directors had appointed M/s. Paliwal & Co., Practicing Company Secretary (COP No.
12119), Ahmedabad, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year
2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report for FY 2020-21 is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure - B’.

The Board of Directors has duly reviewed the Secretarial Auditors’ Report and the
observations and comments, appearing in the report are self-explanatory and do not call for
any further explanation/ clarification by the Board of Directors as provided under section 134
of the Act.

(]
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3. Internal Auditor:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. Sorab S. Engineer
& Co., Chartered Accountants appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the F.Y.
2020-21 in the board meeting held on 30t June, 2020. The Internal Auditor is appointed by
the Board of Directors of the Company on a yearly basis, based on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditor reports its findings on the internal audit of the
Company to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The scope of internal audit is
approved by the Audit Committee.

4. Cost Auditor:

The provision of Cost Audit as per Section 148 is Not Applicable on the Company.

5. Information System Auditor:

The Company had appointed M/S 3Net TechDriver LLP as Information system auditor of the
Company for FY 2020-21, as per RBI MASTER DIRECTION - INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY FRAMEWORK FOR THE NBFC SECTOR [MASTER DIRECTION
DNBS.PPD.NO.04/66.15.001/2016-17] DATED JUNE 08, 2017, at a remuneration, to be decided
by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Auditors plus applicable service tax and
reimbursement of traveling and out of pocket expenses incurred by them for the purpose of the
audit, in the board meeting held on 20t May 2021.

s ENERGY CONSERVATION/TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION/FOREIGN EXCHANGES
EARNING & OUTGO:

(A) ENERGY CONSERVATION:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

The operations of your Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate
measures have been initiated to reduce energy consumption.

One such step is:
> Replacement of conventional lighting with Light Emitting Diode (LED) lighting;:

The Company has installed LED lighting in Branch Offices of the Company during the
year under review.

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Nil.

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption: Not Applicable

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution: Not Applicable.




ANNUAL REPORT nght

(iii)  In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the Financial Year): Not Applicable.

(a) Details of Technology Imported;

(b) Year of Import;

(c) Whether the Technology has been fully absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof.

(iv) Your Company has not incurred any expenditure on Research and Development
during the year under review.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

During the period under review, the company has made below mentioned foreign expenses
and income:

Particulars Currency FY 2020-21
Expenditure in Foreign Currency US Dollars 877

MIS Infrastructure Expenses Indian Rupees 65,969
Expenditure of Processing Fees on | US Dollars 45,000
NCD Indian Rupees 33,15,600
Earning in Foreign Currency -

% CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Considering the explanation provided in section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company had constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR] Committee. The Board of Directors of the Company have
constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee vide board meeting dated 11th
November 2020 consisting of the following members:

1. Mr. Deepak Amin, Managing Director
2. Mr. Rakesh Kumar, CEO & Executive Director

3. Mr. Aviral Saini, CFO & Executive Director
4. Mr. Mukesh Shah, Independent Director

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved a CSR Policy based on the
recommendation of the CSR Committee. The Company has initiated activities in accordance
with the said Policy.

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at
link: https://www .lightmicrofinance.com/compliance.html

During the year, the Company has spent Rs. 5,37,781 crores on CSR activities. The report on
CSR activities is annexed herewith marked as Annexure “C” [Link of CSR report on website]

a
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY & FRAMEWORK:

Risk management is embedded in your Company’s operating framework. Your Company
believes that managing risks helps in maximizing returns. The Company’s’ approach to
addressing business risks is comprehensive and includes periodic review of such risks and a
framework for mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such risks.

During the year under review, there is no change in the constitution of Risk Management
Committee. Following are the members of the Risk Management Committee throughout the
year:

1. Anuj Kumar

2. Deepak Amin
3. Rakesh Kumar
4.

Aviral Saini

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Company has, in order to attract, motivate and retain manpower in competitive market
and to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company
and in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, devised a policy for Nomination
and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. Key
points of the Policy are:

A. Policy on Appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel:

> The policy is formulated to identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise
and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP and Senior
Management personnel and recommend to the Board for his / her appointment.

> A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he/ she is considered for appointment.

> In case of appointment of Independent Director, the Committee shall satisfy itself with
regard to the independent nature of the Director vis-a-vis the Company so as to enable
the Board to discharge its function and duties effectively.

B. Policy on remuneration of Director, key managerial personnel and senior management
personnel:
The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel vis-a-vis the Company. The Company’s
philosophy is to align them and provide adequate compensation with the Objective of the
Company so that the compensation is used as a strategic tool that helps it to attract, retain
and motivate highly talented individuals who are committed to the core values of the
Company.

The Company has displayed Nomination and Remuneration Policy on website of the company

[https:/ /www.lightmicrofinance.com/compliance.html]

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries so there is no need to prepare Consolidated Financial
Statement for the F. Y. 2020-21.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company believes in the philosophy of conducting the business through fair and ethical
means and has set the best of corporate governance practice in its day to day operations, aimed
at building trust with all its stakeholders.

As per RBI Master Circular - “Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Governance
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 [RBI/2014-15/632 DNBR (PD) CC No.040/03.01.001/2014-15]
dated June 03, 2015, the company has constituted following committees:

S Name of Committee

1 Audit Committee
2 Nomination and remuneration committee
3 Risk Management Committee

The Corporate Governance report of the company for FY 2020-21 is enclosed as “ Annexure D”

The Company has displayed policy on corporate governance on its website
[https:/ / www.lightmicrofinance.com/compliance.html]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

A detailed discussion on the Company’s operational and financial performance are given in
Management Discussion and Analysis Report which is annexed to this report as Annexure E.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
confirm that:

I.  In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed and no material departures have been made from the same.

ii. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit or loss of the company for that year.

iii. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

iv. The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v. The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

a
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vi. The directors had developed proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

< DEPOSITS:

The Reserve Bank of India in exercise of its powers under The Reserve Bank of India, 193, has
granted NBFC-MFI (Registration no. B-14.03244) status to the Company. During the FY 2020-21,
the Company has not accepted any public deposits and the Board of Directors has passed the
resolution that the Company will not accept or hold any public deposits in FY 2021-22.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from Shareholders and Public falling within the
ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. There were no
deposits, which were claimed and remained unpaid by the Company as on 31st March 2021.

< DEBENTURES

Company has issued Non-Convertible Debentures through private placement during the year

Name of NCD | No. of No of Date of Board | Date of | Date of
holders NCD Allottees @ of Directors | Members Allotment
_ . _ . Approval ' Approval | |
State Bank of India | 300 1 30t June, 13th July, 2020 11th August,
| _ 2020 _ 2020 |
> Aviator 150 2 30t June, 13th July, 2020 24th August,
Global 2020 2020
Investment
Fund
>» Northern
Arc Capital
Ltd
Aviator Emerging | 500 1 30t June, 13th July, 2020 12th October,
- Market Fund | | 2020 1 2020 |
Northern Arc | 100 1 30t June, 13th July, 2020 31st March, 2021
Capital Ltd | | 2020

The details debenture trustee for all the above mentioned Non-Convertible debentures issued by
the Company during FY 2020-21 is as under:

Name of Debenture trustee | BEACON TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED

Registered office 4 C & D Siddhivinayak Chambers, Gandhi Nagar, Opp.
MIG Club, Bandra (East) Mumbai - 400 051

CIN U74999MH2015PLC271288
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COMPLIANCE WITH RBI GUIDELINES:

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has granted certificate vide registration No. B-14.03244 dated
May 27, 2014, to commence the business of a Non-Banking Micro Financial Institution (NBFC-
MEFI) without accepting deposits. Your Company is Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit-
Accepting NBFC. Your Company has complied with all applicable regulations of the Reserve
Bank of India. As per Non- Banking Finance Companies RBI Directions, 1998, the Directors
hereby report that the company did not accept any public deposits during the year and did not
have any public deposits outstanding at the end of the year.

FRAUD REPORTING:

No material fraud has been found during the period under review. However, during the year
there have been instances of cash embezzlement amounting to Rs. 7,97,284/- , details of the
same may be referred to in Note no. 21 (O) of the financial statements.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY:

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred between the end of financial year of the Company and the date of
this report.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower
Policy. The policy enables the employees to report to the management instances of unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct. Further the
mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine
concerns or grievances and provide for adequate safe guards against victimization of the
Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism and also provides for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The Whistle Blower Policy of the
Company is available on the website of the Company at www.lightmicrofinance.com.
[https:/ /www lightmicrofinance.com/compliance.html]

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Secretarial Standards for the Board of Directors and General Meetings (SS5-1 & SS-2) are
applicable to the Company. The Company has complied with the provisions of both Secretarial
Standards.

HUMAN RESOURCES & PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets.

Your Company continuously invests in attraction, retention and development of talent. Several
programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company’s
thrust is on the promotion of talent internally through job rotation and job enhancement.

Light
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There is no employee of the Company covered under Sub-rule 2 of Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

Your Company has laid down a set of standards, processes and structure which enables it to
implement internal financial control across the organization and ensure that the same are
adequate and operating effectively. To maintain the objectivity and independence of Internal
Audit, the Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control
systems in the Company and their compliance with the operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies of the Company. Based on the report of Internal Auditor, the process
owners undertake the corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the
control. Significant audit observation and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit
Committee of the Board. However, during the year, no significant audit observation was found
for this report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS [ESOP]

The Board of Directors had approved “ESOP Plan 2018” in the Board Meeting held on 19t June
2018 and the same was approved by the Members in the Extra-Ordinary Meeting held on 23rd
June 2018.

The Company had granted ESOP to Four employees in 2018 at an exercise price of Rs. 10.63/-.

The Board of Director amended the “ESOP Plan 2018” in the Board Meeting held on 20t May
2021 by changing the restriction on maximum number of options that may be granted to each
employee to be 10,00,000 in number per eligible employee.

The Board of Directors further approved granted 5,02,000 ESOPs to Thirty-Five employees at an
exercise price of Rs. 37.70/ --.

The ESOP disclosure pursuant to Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014, and the provisions under section 62 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules framed there
under are enclosed as “Annexure F”

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation of the co-operation and
assistance received from shareholders, debenture holders, bankers, lenders, regulatory bodies,
and other business constituents during the year under review. Your directors also wish to place
on record their deep sense of appreciation for the commitment displayed by all the executives,
officers and employees, resulting in the successful performance of the Company during the
year.
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Signing as per Board Resolution passed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

The ESOP disclosure pursuant to Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014, and the provisions under section 62 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules framed there
under are enclosed as “ Annexure E”

s+ ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation of the co-operation and
assistance received from shareholders, debenture holders, bankers, lenders, regulatory bodies,
and other business constituents during the year under review. Your directors also wish to place
on record their deep sense of appreciation for the commitment displayed by all the executives,
officers and employees, resulting in the successful performance of the Company during the
year.

Signing as per Board Resolution passed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF,
LIGHT MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

DEEPAK AMIN RAKESH KUMAR AVIRAL SAINI
MANAGING DIRECTOR CEO & EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CFO & EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DIN NO. 01289453 DIN NO. 03430670 DIN NO. 03534719
DATE: - PLACE: - AHMEDABAD
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¢ Reduction

¢ Reduction in short-term borrowing 2,92,628
e Interest due but not paid -
Net Change
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 4,515,540,700 2,26,857,877 47,42,398,577
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 14,152,513 -
iv)Short term borrowing 1,00,107,398 -
Total (i+ii+iii)
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Name of MD/WTD/Manager : Mr. Deepak Amin [ Managing Director]

Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Bifurcation Total Amount

No.

1. Gross salary 56,25,000 56,25,000

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,

1¥0d3d TVNNNVY

3]



(o]

1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961.

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option N.A. N.A.
3. Sweat Equity N.A. N.A.
4. Commission N.A. N.A.
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
S Others, please specify N.A. N.A.
Total (A) 56,25,000 56,25,000
Ceiling as per the Act N.A. N.A.
B. Remuneration to other directors:
(Amounts in Rs.)
Particulars of Name of Directors Total
Remuneration Amount
Mukesh Shah | Anuj Kumar Rakesh Kumar Aviral Deepak
(Independent (Independent (Executive Director Saini Amin
Director) Director) /CEO) (Executive | (Managing
Director / | Directors
CFO) w.e.f.
15.02.2019)
1. Independent Directors 145000 200000 0 0 3450000
* Fee for attending board
/ committee
meetings
* Commission
* Others, please specify

3]
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Total (1)

145000

200000

345000

Other Non-Executive
Directors

* Fee for attending board
/

committee meetings

¢ Commission

* Salary

Total (2)

0

o

Total (B)=(1+2)

145000

200000

345000

Executive Directors
Gross salary

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961.

(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under

Section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961.

0

3250012

2750016

5625000

11625028

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

10.

Others, please specify

1¥0d3d TVNNNVY

3]
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Total 0 0
3250012 2750016 5625000 11625028
11. Total Managerial
Remuneration 145000 200000 3250012 2750016 5625000 | 11625028

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

S. | Particulars of Remuneration (Amounts in Rs.)
No
Madhavi Gajjar Total Amount
(Company Secretary)
1. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 514974 514974
1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961.
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option 0 0
3. | Sweat Equity 0 0
4. | Commission 0 0
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. | Others, please specify 0 0
Total 514974 >14974
6. | Total Managerial Remuneration 514974 514974

3]
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Paliwal & Co.
(Formerly Known as

Alpesh Dhandhlya & Associates)
Company Secretaries

Office: 401, Haash Complex, Nagri Hospital-Law Garden Road, Nr. Elliss Bridge Police Line, Ahmedabad-380006
Email Ids. welcomeZpesiigmail.com, alpesh.pesfigmail.com,Fh. 079 - 48080181, Contact Noas. 8000133307

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

LIGHT MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
308 Aggarwal Tower,

Plot No. 2 Sector - 5,

Dwarka, New Delhi-110075, India

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/S. LIGHT
MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called ‘the Company’).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon,

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31 March, 2021 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31
March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(iiy The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956(°SCRA’} and the rules
made there under; {Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)
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Paliwal & Co.
(Formerly Known as

Alpesh Dhandhlya & Associates)
Company Secretaries

Office: 401, Haash Complex, Nagrl Hospital-Law Garden Road, Nr. Ellize Bridge Police Line, Ahmedabad-380006
Email Ids. welcomeSpesigmail.com, alpesh. pesigmail.com,Ph. 079 - 48980181, Contact Nos. 8000133307

(iiiy The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
there under; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit

Period).

(v} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas

Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v}  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act,1992 (‘SEBI Act): —

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, {Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider

Trading) Regulations,1992; (Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period)

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period],

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ({Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

f- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

g. The Securitles and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity

Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)

Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period).

a
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Paliwal & Co.
(Formerly Known as
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Company Secretaries

Office: 401, Haash Complex, Nagri Hospital-Law Garden Road, Nr. Elfise Bridge Police Line, Ahmedabad-380008
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India

(i) The Uniform Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchanges pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable regulations
/guidelines /circulars as may be issued by SEBI from time to time. {Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to the following observations/qualification: Nil

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in
pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the

following laws applicable specifically to the Company:
(a) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1932

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out incompliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out with
requisite majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.
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I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

Date: For, Paliwal & Co.
Place: Ahmedabad (Formerly Known as Alpesh Dhandhlya &
Associates)

Company Secretaries

Alpesh Paliwal

Proprietor
COP: 12119
UCN: 12013GJ1046200

Peer Review Registration Number: 508/2017
UDIN: A032500C000709385

a
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Paliwal & Co.
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Alpesh Dhandhlya & Associates)
Company Secretaries

Office: 401, Haash Complex, Nagri Hospital-Law Garden Road, Nr. Ellise Bridge Police Line, Ahmedabad-380008
Email Ids. welcomeSpesigmail.com, alpesh. pesigmail.com,Ph. 079 - 48980181, Contact Nos. 8000133307

To,
The Members,
LIGHT MICROFINANCE FRIVATE LIMITED

308 Aggarwal Tower,
Plot No. 2 Sector - 5,

Dwarka, New Delhi-110075, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Qur
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.
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Office: 401, Haash Complex, Nagri Hospital-Law Garden Road, Nr. Ellise Bridge Police Line, Ahmedabad-380006
Email Ids. welcomeZpesy gmail.com, alpesh.pesiy gmail.com, Ph. 079 - 48980181, Contact Nos. 8000133307

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: For, Paliwal & Co.
Place: Ahmedabad (Formerly Known as Alpesh Dhandhlya &
Associates)

Company Secretaries

Alpesh Paliwal

Proprietor

COP: 12119

UCN: 12013GJ1046200

Peer Review Registration Number: 508/2017
UDIN: A032500C000709385
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CORPORATE SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

LIGHT MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
CSR REPORT FOR THE FY 2020-2021

INTRODUCTION:

Light is committed to build a sustainable business with strong social relevance and a commitment to
inclusive growth and contribute to the society by supporting causes on various concerns.

In pursuance of our vision, we are dedicated towards fulfilling the social objectives through various
CSR activities. We endeavor to positively impact and influence the society for its sustainable
development.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has crossed the
threshold limit of net profit of Rs. 5 Crores or more in the FY 2019-20, Therefore Company is required
to comply with provisions of the aforesaid section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the FY 2020-21.

CSR POLICY:

The Companies Act, 2013 has brought greater emphasis on CSR with rules that provide guidance on
minimum CSR spend, focus areas, implementation mechanism and reporting to the shareholders of
the company.

The Company's CSR Policy has been designed keeping in view the company's business vision, its CSR
vision, and long-term social objectives that the company wants to achieve. LIGHT CSR Policy has
been created with the purpose to outline its CSR focus areas, review mechanism, execution process
and reporting mechanism.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (“the CSR Policy”) has been framed by Light Microfinance
Private Limited (the Company) and approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting dated 11"
November 2020.

CSR Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, every company having

1. Net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more; or

2. Turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more; or

3. Net profit of rupees five crore or more

during the immediately preceding financial year is required to constitute a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board consisting of three or more directors out of which at
least one director shall be an independent director.

Considering the explanation provided in section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company have constituted the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee vide board meeting dated 11" November 2020 consisting of the
following members:
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1. Mr. Deepak Amin, Managing Director

2. Mr. Rakesh Kumar, CEO & Executive Director
3. Mr. Aviral Saini, CFO & Executive Director

4. Mr. Mukesh Shah, Independent Director

A Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“the CSR Committee”) has been constituted by the
Board of Directors to oversee the CSR agenda of the Company. Board of Directors shall be
empowered to take decision for making or effecting changes in the constitution of the CSR
Committee.

Roles and Responsibility of CSR Committee:

Roles and Responsibility of CSR committee is as mentioned Below:

a. formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company in areas or subject, specified in Schedule
VIL
b.  recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a);
and

c.  monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.

d.  Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of
Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

CSR Activities:

Pursuant to Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Committee has approved the following

activities as “CSR Activities” to be undertake under the CSR policy of the Company. The Board of

Directors has reviewed the said activities and express its consent to the Committee to pursue the said

activities under CSR policy of the Company under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2014, Schedule

VII and other applicable rules, regulations, notifications etc., issued/to be issued from time to time.

Approved CSR Activities:

i Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including preventive

health care and sanitation, including contribution to the Swacch Bharat Kosh set-up by the
Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and making available safe drinking
water.

ii.  Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation
skills especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects.

iii. ~ Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women
and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior
citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically
backward groups;

iv.  Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of
soil, air and water, including contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund set-up by the Central
Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga.

v. Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites
of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and
development of traditional arts and handicrafts.

=]
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vi. Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents.

vii. Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and
Olympic sports.

viii. Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the
Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the
Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, and other backward classes, minorities and
women.

ix. (a) Contribution to incubators or research and development projects in the field of science,
technology, engineering, and medicine, funded by the Central Government or State
Government or Public Sector Undertaking or any agency of the Central Government or
State Government; and

(b) Contributions to public funded Universities; Indian Institute of Technology (IITs);

National Laboratories and autonomous bodies established under Department of
Atomic Energy (DAE); Department of Biotechnology (DBT); Department of Science
and Technology (DST); Department of Pharmaceuticals; Ministry of Ayurveda, Yoga
and Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (AYUSH); Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology and other bodies, namely Defense Research and
Development Organization (DRDO); Indian Council of Agricultural Research (ICAR);
Indian Council of Medical Research (ICMR) and Council of Scientific and Industrial
Research (CSIR), engaged in conducting research in science, technology, engineering
and medicine aimed at promoting Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).]

x.  Rural Development Projects; and

xi.  Slum area development

xii. Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation, and reconstruction activities

xiii. COVID related expenditure as per the clarification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs of the
company dated 23.03.2020 and necessary changes made by government as amended from
time to time

CSR Expenses:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company is required to
spend 2% of its average net profits towards CSR activities for the Financial Year 2019-20 in the
Financial Year 2020-2021. Light Microfinance Private Limited has achieved the following limit in the
immediately preceding Financial Year by crossing the Net Profit requirement of the section 135 of
Companies Act 2013. The Company's net profit in FY 2019-20 was Rs. 5,11,71,228 calculated as per the
Companies Act, 2013.

In line with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend Rs. 5,37,781/-
(Five Lakhs Thirty-Seven Thousand Seven Hundred and Eighty-One Rupees Only) towards its CSR
activities as mentioned in its CSR Policy considering the average net profit made during three
immediately preceding financial years i.e., FY 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20.

As per section 135 (5), any amount remaining unspent, pursuant to any ongoing project, fulfilling
such conditions as may be prescribed, undertaken by a company in pursuance of its Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy, shall be transferred by the company within a period of thirty days from the end
of the financial year to a special account to be opened by the company in that behalf for that financial
year in any scheduled bank to be called the Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account, and
such amount shall be spent by the company in pursuance of its obligation towards the Corporate
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Social Responsibility Policy within a period of three financial years from the date of such transfer,
failing which, the company shall transfer the same to a Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a
period of thirty days from the date of completion of the third financial year. budget for CSR
activities. The minimum budgeted amount for a financial year shall be 2% of the average net profit of
three immediate preceding financial years. The Company may allocate more fund/amount than the
amount prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the CSR activities for any
financial year. The Committee shall calculate the total fund for the CSR activities and recommend to
the Board for the approval. The Board shall approve the total fund to be utilized for CSR activity for
respective financial year. CSR expenditure shall include all expenditure including contribution to
corpus for projects or programs relating to CSR activities approved by the Board on the
recommendation of its CSR Committee, but does not include any expenditure on an item not in
conformity or not in line with activities which fall within the approved CSR activities.

Identification of CSR Project:

The company has identified the project for CSR and accordingly found a group named “Ahmedabad
Woman's Action group” “AWAG” which strives to assert the individuality of women by supporting
them to get social justice in their struggle to survive and develop as equal human beings. AWAG
considers raising awareness as the first step towards empowerment; with income generation as the
second. A woman's right to her body, her duty towards keeping it in health and avoiding blind faith
are considered equally important. The habit of savings is promoted. Thus, AWAG has a holistic
approach towards women's empowerment wherein women's rights are seen as human rights. In view
of the global pandemic of Coronavirus, AWAG plans to help communities in Gujarat with relation to
their sanitation, hygiene and nutrition needs. Cleaning and disinfecting frequently touched surfaces is
very important to control the spread of the virus. Sanitization has becoming utmost important for the
individuals, spaces and the objects. Likewise, consuming nutritious food to build immunity to fight
Covid infection is equally important. For this, in addition to providing the women with 'Sanitation,
Hygiene and Nutrition Kits', awareness related to maintaining hygiene of their surroundings as well
as maintaining social distancing and good nutritional intake will also be touched upon.

ITEM UNIT COST (INR) PER KIT
Sanitizer liquid and pump 350

Sanitary Pads-10 packets 300

Mast-2 50

Dates-1 Packet 140

Jaggery-1.5 Packets 135

Sanitation, Hygiene and Nutrition kit bag-1 100

Total 1075

Total fund required for 500 Women=5,37,500/ -

a




<\

,:Q /Lighf ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

/

MICROFINANCE

Details of CSR spent during the FY 2020-21:

a) Total amount to be spent for the FY 2019-20: Rs. 5,37,781/- (Five Lakhs Thirty-Seven
Thousand Seven Hundred and Eighty-One Rupees Only)

b) Total amount spent for the FY 2019-20: Rs. 5,37,781 /-
¢) Amount unspent, if any- Nil
d) Implementation of CSR Activity:

Company has distributed 'Sanitation, Hygiene and Nutrition Kits' to 500 Women
belonging to low economic groups from the slum areas of Ahmedabad

Each 'Sanitation, Hygiene and Nutrition Kits' will contain the following items:
1. Sanitizer liquid and Pump
2. Sanitary Napkins
3. Masks
4. Dates
5. Jaggery
The above items will be placed in a Kit Bag.

Monitoring of CSR programs:

The CSR Committee of LIGHT shall be responsible for day to day management of CSR
related activities of the company. The CSR Committee shall periodically report to the CSR
committee regarding the financial and programmatic progress of CSR projects.

All projects undertaken by LIGHT shall be monitored on a regular basis.
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Annexure E
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Industry structure and developments

The Microfinance Industry comprises NBFC-MFIs, Banks, Small Finance Banks (SFBs),
NBFCs and Others (including Non-profit MFIs). Based onMFIN data, Industry's total
loan portfolio accounted for Rs. 2,318bn as on March 2020 (Y-o-y growth of 29.26%).
The total no. of active loan accounts was 10.54Cr with 5.89 Crunique borrowers
outstanding at the year end. As on Mar 20 the industry consisted of 170 lending
institutions - 84 NBFC-MFIs, 12 Banks, 8 SFBs, 45 NBFCs and 21 others.

The ending of Financial Year 2020 was marked by the undesirable presence of Covid-
19 pandemic which shook the foundations of economies worldwide. The pandemic
has disrupted nearly all economic activity while effecting significant loss of lives.
Domestic demand and exports sharply plummeted with some few exceptions where
high growth was observed.The extent to which localized lockdowns and restrictions
were imposed determined the economic recovery. India's fiscal deficit for 2020-21
zoomed to 9.5% of GDP as against 3.5% projected earlier. Microfinance sector was no
exception. The significant impact of the pandemic was witnessed in 1st two Quarters
of F.Y. 2021, wherein the financial institutions via circulation from RBI were directed
to provide 6 months (March 2020-August 2020) moratorium to all the eligible
borrowers hampering the cash inflows. People were encouraged to work from home
and practicing social distancing was need of the hour. For NBFC-MFIs, it brought a
near-halt to the business due to restrictions on mobility, leading to liquidity
issues.With a view to increasing liquidity, RBI announced the TLTRO on Tap Scheme
worth Rs.1Trillion in Oct 2020. For further support to borrowers on account of the
fallout of Covid19, RBI allowed Restructuring of Advances subject to certain
conditions. The pandemic is not over yet, though, and the second wave hit the country
very hard. RBI has announced further window for restructuring of loans, thus,
impacted. However, significant progress has been made in terms of vaccination,
liquidity, and social participation in restricting the pandemic.

Despite such challenges, according to MFIN data, microfinance industry portfolio
grew 11.9% to Rs 2,594bn as of Mar '21. The active loan accounts outstanding were
10.83 Cr with industry catering to 5.93 Crore borrowers.Banking segment has the
highest market share of 43.7% while NBFC-MFIs are the 2nd largest contributor with
31.1% market share. SFBs hold 15.9% and NBFCs/Others contribute 9.4%. As on
Mar 21 the industry consisted of 188 lending institutions - 85 NBFC-MFIs, 13 Banks,
8 SFBs, 53 NBFCs and 29 others.
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b) Opportunities, Threats and Strategies
Opportunities:
Large Demand Supply Gap:

While the microfinance industry has been growing steadily at a fast pace over past
several years, the demand for credit in the underserved segment or microfinance
customers is still huge, estimated at Rs 8-10 Lakh Cr. Hence, growth prospects remain
high for microfinance products and expansion can come through both, addition of
new customers across existing and new rural areas, and introduction of new products.

Non-Financial Products & Services:

The credit products are primarily targeted towards Income generation activities.
However, customers require other lesser explored areas of education, health,
consumption etc. Non - credit products such as saving schemes, insurance,
investments will be evaluated going forward, as they aid in sustainable growth of the
customer and customer base and create loyalty.

According to the statistics, almost 32% population in rural India & 67% population in
urban India are active internet users. Smartphone penetration in rural India has risen
to almost 25%. In 2020, the transaction volume share in India stood at 15.6 per cent and
22.9 per cent for instant payments. We have tied up with a leading phone brand to
provide the phone and financing to our customers while investing in technology
infrastructure to enrich their journey with Light.

New Regulations:

RBI in Jun'21 floated a consultation paper to identify new guidelines for the
microfinance industry. The proposed guidelines will bring sweeping changes to the
way industry was operating currently, where NBFC-MFIs were bridled with very
restrictive rules while the rest operated through the arbitrage created due to their
constitution of being a Bank, SFB or NBFC. The new guidelines will not only level the
playing field by requiring common credit assessment methodology (cash flow
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assessment) but also free up pricing, expand NIMs, thus, enabling expansion into
more remote and greenfield locations and also investments in technology to enable
such expansion.

Threats:
Covid-19:

Covid-19 pandemic is not over yet. A devastating second wave disrupted businesses
again and brought upon terrible loss of lives. A third wave is being predicted. This
uncertainty on both health and economic fronts is the biggest challenge soon as it
stretches already depleted resources of everyone involved. Accordingly, rural
household incomes, which were impacted more in the second wave may be impacted
again in the third wave increasing the stress on collections and portfolio.

Competition:

NBFC-MFIs have been operating under very strict regulations compared to other
players in the space, namely, Banks, SFBs and NBFCs. Till the new guidelines come in
and level the playing field, risk of high indebtedness due to overlending remains high.

Socio-political:

Microfinance customers are a politically sensitive segment and as witnessed in Assam,
they continue to remain so. Such situation will be constantly monitored to ensure
impact is minimized on our portfolio.

Strategies:

Portfolio quality is central to all decisions at Light while equally ensuring best interests
of employees and customers. We are constantly innovating to improve our delivery
and control through right technology and financial tools. During this year, strong
controls on collection were established through video monitoring, telecalling and
collection analytics. Disbursements were streamlined through technology and
digitization of documents. Liquidity was ensured through government schemes and
established relationships while a healthy balance of off book play was deployed. This
resulted in an AUM growth of 31% vis-a-vis industry growth of 19% while Portfolio at
Risk at 90+ days overdue was contained at 0.85% compared to 10%+ for industry.

Going forward, we are investing significantly in separate Training Team to ensure all
employees remain better aligned with company imperatives. Big investments are
underway in technology to streamline all functions, including Operations, HR,
Training, Credit, Accounts and Compliance while an integrated analytics platform is
being developed to bring much better and precise inputs for future decision making.
At the same time, newer and more relevant products, like smartphone financing, are
being evaluated for our customers.

Outlook

The future still holds multiple challenges despite significant strides made in containing
the impact of pandemic through economic interventions to boost liquidity and medical
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interventions like vaccines. If the pandemic were to prolong, or if the monsoon is
below normal, rural incomes will be impacted, and recovery will be slow leading to
drop in collection efficiency. According to the reports issued by various credit rating
agencies Collection Efficiency is estimated to drop by 10 to 15% in coming 2-3 Months
leading to an increase in Credit Cost to 5 to 10% in FY22. Fresh disbursements are
likely to be significantly curtailed during coming 2-3 months. For smaller MFIs, 90
DPD figures are expected to be in the range of 4.5-5% as of coming Quarter. To sum
up, agencies and experts reiterate Stable Outlook for large and group-owned MFIs
having diverse customer base ,while the small and mid-sized MFIs will have to strive
to keep their position in the industry for the rest for FY22.

However, with our focus on portfolio quality, customer centricity, employee
engagement and technology the future holds a lot of promise for Light. With new
guidelines coming in and easing of pricing pressures, we will be able to expedite our
technology enabled streamlining and scaling to become the most preferred financial
services provider to more of the financially underserved segments of society.

Risks and concerns.

Sound risk management is critical to our success,and we have assiduously created a
culture of acknowledging, assessing and mitigating risk. We have a separate Risk
Management Committee on our Board for overseeing the process of identification,
evaluation, prioritization, and mitigation of risks through appropriate frameworks.

o We manage our liquidity very carefully through regular assessment of product-
wise, tenor-wise, and instrument-wise Asset/ Liability data. Alongside,
liquidity status is monitored using static and dynamic tools at weekly,
fortnightly, monthly, and quarterly periods to ensure right planning of fund
raise, to deploy excess liquidity profitably and to maintain sufficient buffer of 6
months of operational expenses.

= Major business is concentrated in Gujarat and Rajasthan;currently, and
accordingly we will be expanding into other states to reduce state level
exposures to 20-25% of total portfolio over the next 4 years. accordingly, we
have expanded into Haryana and more parts of Madhya Pradesh. The goal is to
achieve a balanced concentration in both its loan portfolio and borrowings.

= Microfinance being collateral free, requires enhanced credit risk management
arises. We have been at the forefront of redefining credit risk management in
microfinance by establishing a separate and independent credit vertical with
singular focus on portfolio quality. This year, we added another stringent
condition of not lending to anyone with a single day delay in payment in her
history. The outcome is 0.85% Portfolio At Risk (90 days overdue) compared to
10.67% for industry.

o Robust control systems and processes have been set up to ensure operational
integrity is maintained at all times. Analytics driven collection monitoring and
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on field credit team monitoring, minimizes risk of leakage. The entire system is
enabled through right technology interventions. This has ensured timely
identification of the very few fraud incidents over last year and recovery in full
for the same.

= Measuring information technology risk, securing integrity of data, and
protecting the servers from unauthorized attacks remains a challenge for many
organizations. To mitigate those risks our company has integrated IT risks and
controls with the overall assessment of financial reporting risks. These controls
are designed to reduce IT risks to an acceptable level. Along with data security
measures such as firewall, antivirus, the main database of light is whitelisted
which prevents it to get accessed from outside the perimeter of company. The
replication of database is created, which will help us if in any case the main
database is crashed, or any problem arises. Periodic reviews and technological
upgradation have become an inevitable part of our company.

Internal control systems and their adequacy.

Strong internal controlsare pre-requisite for unhindered quality growth. To ensure
this, an Audit Committee comprising highly qualified and accomplished professionals
in their field. Well-documented policies, effective procedures and authorization
guidelines that assist in accomplishing objectives by establishing a systematic,
disciplined and risk-based approach to evaluate and contribute to the improvement of
the organization's governance, risk management and control process.Regular Risk
based internal audits are conducted across the head office and the branches in present
states based on the portfolio, disbursement, PAR, collection efficiency, attrition, and
frequency. Surprise audit at branches also plays a role in the early detection and
prevention of fraud. Reports of these audits are reviewed at regular intervals to ensure
any red flags in their operations.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

In the period of Mar '20, India was hit by the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic, putting
human lives, businesses and economy at stake. Light, like any other organization, was
apprehensive about how the business will navigate the financial and operational
challenges brought about bythe pandemic while rapidly addressing the needs of their
employees, customers, and other stakeholders without compromising the health and
safety of all involved. Through successful planning, teamwork, coordination, and
implementation of the policies, we came out less affected and posted strong
performance.

Light grew its AUM beyond Rs 500 Cr by the end of Sep 20 and Rs 623 Cr by Mar '21,
a remarkable Y-o-Y growth of 31% (AUM on Mar 20 was Rs 4.76 Cr) in comparison
with the industry which showed Y-o-Y growth of 11%. Disbursement in FY21 were Rs
453 Cr. PAT stood at 12.7Cr in Mar '21 increasing by more than 3x compared to Rs 4Cr
in Mar '20. Our company managed to maintain PAR >30 at 1.63% & PAR >90 at 0.85%
as on Mar 21 (way below Industry's average PAR >30 at 15.21% & PAR >90 at 10.57%;
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Source: Equifax) with a striking Collection Efficiency of 97%. Strict credit norms for
customer selection and underwriting played major role in keeping Portfolio at Risk
(PAR) and NPA in check.Light raised funds worth Rs. 411 Cr, majority of it coming
from Banks.

On the operational front, Light ventured into new geography by opening 13 branches
in state of Haryana along with adding branches the existing states.The branch count as
of Mar 21 stood at 131. Light's customer base also escalated from 1.85L to 2.17L.

g) Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including
number of people employed.

The whole world entered an unprecedented phase when COVID-19 hit us in the
beginning of 2020-21. The two events of continuous lockdown and announcement of
moratorium by RBI over term loans has impacted operations and collections
respectively in the microfinance industry. In that troublesome period, HR supported
and upheld Light's goals by fostering a positive and engaging work environment
while identifying and responding to the changing needs of our diverse community.
Light sensed the problems beforehand and had made adequate arrangements with the
technology and infrastructure support for employees to Work from Home (WFH).
During the lockdown, HR Team clearly communicated with the employees on regular
basis, informed them about the organization current situation, and ensured full
support from the Management.

Our HR Team comprises some of the most qualified, experienced and promising
personnel.

Fmp:'.v!.w f'nm_g'nﬂw Fian
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. Arranging for WFH for all employees by providing them laptops and access to Company data in
coordination with IT Team. Geography based attendance was also launched.

. Covid controller were appointed who took care of all the sanitization related work including installation

of sanitization tunnel, automatic hand sanitizer, sanitization of office premises (handles, of all doors

washrooms etc.) etc.

. Despite low business initially, our company also managed to maintain its employee retention during

this tough time by timely and full payment of salary and even conducted annual appraisal to award

salary increments to all employees. There were no layoffs during such unprecedented times. Currently,

Light employsover 1,400 people, including 938 Loan Officers.

. Employee Engagement programs were also conducted to boost the morale of the employees and infuse

new zeal into them.

Employees Statistics -Year wise comparison is given below: -

Employee Strength F.Y.2020 | F.Y.2021 | Growth
No. of Employees 1055 1277 16.30%
No. of Loan Officers 749 616 21.60%

A Training and Development Team was established with the mandate to plan batch wise induction and

refresher training to all employees. Apart from that it also organizes special programs for middle

management of business credit and other verticals. The following are some highlights conducted: -

* Total No. of
Web Trainings- 65
* Total No. of
Participants- 380

e Total No of
Induction Batches- 47
e Total No. of
participants- 564

2 workshops
Design Thinking and
Change Management

* 5 townhalls and
264 participants including
Review meet by BH and
BM review + ACM
Review by
Credit Head

(7]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Light Micro Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Light Micro Finance Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

As more fully described in Note 21 (P) to the annual financial results, the extent to which the COVID-19
pandemic will have impact on the Company’s financial performance is dependant on future developments,
which are highly uncertain.

QOur opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

78 UDIN NO. : 21153599AAAAE04650
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014;

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. with respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

UDIN NO. : 21153599AAAAE04650 ( 79
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g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 21(G) to the financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. the Company is not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education & Protection
Fund.

For KANTILAL PATEL & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 104744W

Jinal A Patel

Place: Ahmedabad Partner
Date: May 20, 2021 Membership No.: 153599

UDIN NO. : 21153599AAAAE04650
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, we report that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.
(b) The fixed asscts were physically verified during the year by Management in accordance with a
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all
fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company there is no frechold Land and buildings or leaschold land as at the

balance sheet date.

il The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, which does the business of loan finance.
Accordingly, it does not require holding inventories. Thus, Paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,

secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with provision of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect to the loans and investments
made.

V. The company has not accepted deposits from public during the year and does not have any

unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2019 and therefore, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order arc
not applicable to the company.

Vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companics Act 2013.

Vii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, goods &
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by
the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods & service tax, cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute

viii. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial institution during the
year. The company does not have any loans & borrowings payable to government and has not issued
any debentures.

UDIN NO. : 21153599AAAAEO04650 | 81
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ix. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company did not raise any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments), further money raised
by way of term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purpose of which
they were raised.

X. No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit except for few instances of misappropriation of cash
collected from customers and other forms of embezzlement of cash by the employees involving
amounts aggregating Rs.12.66 lakhs. The Company has terminated the services of such employees
and also initiated legal action against such employees. The Company has recovered Rs.6.37 lakhs
from some employees.

Xi. As Section 197 is not applicable to the Private Limited Company for providing Managerial
Remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

Xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. During the year, the Company has made private placement of preference shares and fully convertible
debentures. In our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirement of Section 42 of the Act
and the Rules framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised have been used for
the purposes for which the funds were raised.

XV. Based on the examination of the records and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, during the year, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him as referred to in the Section 192 of the Companies Act,

2013.

XVI. The Company is registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
For KANTILAL PATEL & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 104744W
Jinal A Patel
Place: Ahmedabad Partner
Date: May 20, 2021 Membership No.: 153599

UDIN NO. : 21153599AAAAE04650
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Light Micro Finance Private
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemnal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

UDIN NO. : 21153599AAAAE04650 ( 83
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KANTILAL PATEL & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 104744W

Jinal A Patel
Place: Ahmedabad Partner
Date: May 20, 2021 Membership No.: 153599

84 UDIN NO. : 21153599AAAAE04650
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LIGHT MICROFINANCE PVT LTD
CIN- U67120DL.1994PTC216764

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(Amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' Funds:
Share Capital 2 43.31,58,000 33,31,58,000
Reserves & Surplus 3 42,72,35,589 31,41,25,205
86,03,93,589 64,72,83,205
Non-current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 4 2,27,94,18,612 1,62,28,40,802
2,27,94,18,612 1,62,28,40,802
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 5 10,01,07,398 10,04,00,026
Trade Payables 6
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors Micro enterprises and - -
small ises
(ii) Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than Micro 1,39,32,775 1,18,25,020
enterprises and small enterprises
Short Term Provisions 7 7,55,42,853 3,27,20312
Other Current Liabilities 8 2,58,84,27,509 1,57.80,06,576
2,77,80,10,535 1,72,29,51,935
TOTAL 5,91,78,22,735 3,99,30,75,943
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant & Equipment's
Tangible Assets 9 1,72,70,317 1,37,39,027
Intangible assets 9 53,67,989 64,20,760
Long Term Loans and Advances 10 2,17,85,03,957 1,20,71,55,685
Deferred Tax Asset 11 1,75,67,442 87,10,699
Other Non-Current Assets 12 13,23,38,217 12,33,10,658
2,35,10,47,922 1,35,93.36,829
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Bank Balances 13 29,31,71,089 32,30,52,248
Trade Receivables 14 2,71,99,866 1,66,32,785
Short Term Loans & Advances 10 2,79,52,98,550 1,88,68,17,904
Other Current Assets 12 45,11,05,307 40,72,36,177
3,56,67,74,812 2,63,37,39,114
TOTAL 5,91,78,22,735 3,99,30,75,943
As per our attached report of even date
For Light Microfinance Pvt Ltd
For Kantilal Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants Deepak Amin
FRN No. 104744W Managing Director

Jinal A. Patel
Partner
Membership No. : 153599

Place: Ahmedabad

(DIN- 01289453)

Rakesh Kumar
Executive Director
(DIN-03430670)

Aviral Saini
Executive Director
(DIN-03534719)

Madhavi Gajjar
Company Secretary
(M. No. A54522)
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LIGHT MICRO FINANCE PVT LTD
CIN- U67120DL1994PTC216764

Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2021

&)

(Amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Income
Revenue from Operations 15 1,12,25,78,619 73,92,81,611
Other Income 16 2,72,37,438 2,92,19,326
Total Revenue (I) 1,14,98,16,057 76,85,00,937
Expenses
Employee Benefit Expense 17 31,54,52,923 23,13,00,229
Finance Costs 18 48,92,77.454 33,63,87,168
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9 98,54,813 74,38,437
|Other Expenses 19 12,88,82,441 12,60,23,449
Provisions and write offs 20 4,69,31,178 1,61,80,425
Total Expenses (IT) 99,03,98,810 71,73,29,708
Profit Before Tax (III) = (I) - (II) 15,94,17,247 5,11,71,229
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 4,09,31,341 1,28,79,798
Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability (88,56,743) (24,69,522)|
Expense/(Short)Provisions of earlier year 54,155 5,49,973

3,21,28,753 1,09,60,249

Profit After Tax 12,72,88,495 4,02,10,980
Earnings Per Share (of Rs. 10/- each):
Basic 21 5.08 1.61
Diluted EPS 21 3.78 1.20
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements 1to 21

As per our attached report of even date

For Light Microfinance Pvt Ltd

For Kantilal Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 104744W
Deepak Amin
Managing Director
Jinal A. Patel (DIN- 01289453)
Partner
Membership No. : 153599
Rakesh Kumar
Executive Director
(DIN-03430670)
Aviral Saini
Executive Director
(DIN-03534719)
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: Madhavi Gajjar
Company Secretary

(MNo. A54522)
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LIGHT MICRO FINANCE PVT LTD
CIN- U67120DL1994PTC216764

Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before tax 15,94,17,247 5,11,71,228
Depreciation and amortization 98,54,813 74,38,437
Prior Period Tax Adjustment (54,155) (5.49.973)
Profit on sale of Assets (633) (3,306)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 16,92,17,272 5,80,56,386

Movements in Working Capital:

Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities 1,04,26,94,600 52,71,76,481

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 21,07,755 4,26,290
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (1,05,67,081) 50,61,013
Decrease/(Increase) in loans and advances (1,87,98,28,918) (1,37,90,26,503)

Decrease/(Increase) in other current assets (4,38,69,130) (25,69,91,587)
Decrease/(Increase) in other non current asset (90,27,559) (3,07,16,366)
Cash Generated/(Used in) Operations: (72,92,73,061) (1,07,54,14,287)
Direct Taxes Paid (net of refunds) 3,03,80,569 1,15,92,825

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (A) (75,96,53,630) (1,08,70,07,112)

Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,06,35,370) (1,24,94,978)
Purchase of intangible asset (17,00,729) (50,33,128)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 1,500 10,000
Decrease/(Increase) in Investment in Mutual Fund (Net) = 1,91,06,623

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (B) (1,23,34,599) 15,88,517

Cash flow from Financing Activities

Long term Borrowings (Net) 65,65,77,810 82,88,02,012

Loan Repayable at demand (Net) (2,92,628) 5,04,07,496
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital 10,00,00,000 8,26,58,010
Security Premium (1,41,78,111) 15,27,98,631
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) financing Activities (C) 74,21,07,071 1,11,46,66,149
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,98,81,158) 2,92,47,555
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 32,30,52,248 29,38,04,693
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 29,31,71,089 32,30,52,248

Note:

1. Cash Flow Statement is prepared as per "Indirect Method" as per Accounting standard - 3 issued by the Companies Accounting
Standard Rules, 2006.

2. Figures in brackets represents outflow.

3. Previous year figures have been restated wherever necessary to make them comparable with current year figures.

As per our attached report of even date
For Light Microfinance Pvt Ltd

For Kantilal Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 104744W

Deepak Amin
Managing Director
(DIN-01289453)

Jinal A. Patel
Partner Rakesh Kumar
Membership No. : 153599 Executive Director

(DIN-03430670)

Aviral Saini
Executive Director
(DIN-03534719)

Madhavi Gajjar
Place: Ahmedabad Company Secretary
Date: (M.No. A54522)
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NOTE 1: NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Corporate Information

Light Microfinance Private Limited (“the Company”) is a Private Limited
Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company was registered as a Non-Banking
Financial Company (“NBFC") with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and has
got classified as a Non-Banking Financial Company - Micro Finance Institution
(“NBFC-MFI"”) with effect from May 27, 2014.

The Company is engaged primarily in providing microfinance services to its
members for undertaking productive activities in urban/semi-urban/rural
areas of India who are organized, inter alia as Joint Liability Groups (“JLGs").
The company has its operation spread across 3 states.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting policies in India (“Indian GAAP”) under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis. The Company has prepared
these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the
Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions
of the RBI as applicable to NBFC-MFIs. The accounting policies have been
consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the
previous year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP
requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of reporting period. Although
these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcome requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more
than a year are classified as current investments. All other investments are
classified as long-term investments. Current Investment are valued at the lower
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of cost and fair value. Changes in the carrying amount of current investments
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Long-term Investments are
valued at cost, less any provision for diminution, other than temporary, in the
value of such investments; decline, if any, is charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Cost comprises cost of acquisition and related expenses such as
brokerage and stamp duties.

e. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i. Interest income on loans, assigned or otherwise, is recognized on accrual
basis, considering the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India
from time to time in terms of the Non-Banking Financial Companies -
Micro finance Institutions (NBFC - MFIs) Directions, 2011. Loans are
classified into ‘Performing and Non-Performing” assets in terms of the
said Directions. Loans in respect of which interest/principal have
remained overdue for a period of 90 days or more are considered as
Non-Performing Assets.

ii. Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised on a time
proportion accrual basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable.

ili. = Profit/premium arising at the time of securitization of loan portfolio is
amortized over the life of the underlying loan portfolio.

iv.  Revenues from loan documentation charges are recognized as upfront
income.

V. All other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

f. Property Plant & Equipment

Tangible Assets

All tangible are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use.

Intangible Assets
Computer Software costs are capitalised and amortised over the useful life of
five years.
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Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on the written down value
method using the rates arrived at based on the useful life of assets prescribed
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

g. Impairment of Assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there
is any indication on impairment based on internal/external factors. An
impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of assets exceeds
its recoverable amount. After impairment depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

During the year there was no impairment of assets of the company.

h. Borrowing Costs
Interest Costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss Account on
accrual basis. Prepaid Loan Processing Fees and Syndication charges represent
ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and
is amortized on straight line basis over the tenure of the respective borrowings.
Unamortized borrowing cost, if any, is fully expensed off as and when the
related borrowing is prepaid/cancelled.

i. Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing
at the time the transactions are effected.

j- Retirement and Other Employee Benefits
Contributions to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner to secure retiral
benefits in respect of Employees’ Provident Fund, based on the statutory
provisions as per the Employee Provident Fund Scheme, are charged to
revenue.

The Company accounts for its liability for funded gratuity based on actuarial
valuation.

k. Taxes
Income Tax comprises the current tax provision and the net change in the
deferred tax or liability during the year. Current tax is the amount of tax
payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and other
applicable tax laws.

B
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Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between
the taxable income and the accounting income that originate in one period and
are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted
as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all timing
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for timing differences of items
other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the extent
that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which these can be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date for their realizability.

1. Earnings Per Share
The company reports basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) in
accordance with Accounting Standard - 20 on Earnings per Share. Basic EPS is
computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares, Compulsory Convertible Preference Share
and Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) outstanding during the year.

m. Lease
Corporate Office and Branch office premises are obtained under operating
lease. They are on cancellable term for the period of 11 months & other for 2
years & 11 months. Currently, there are no sub leases.

Lease payment during the year is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Operating Lease expenses recognized in the | 2,66,61,027 2,54,68,188
statement of profit and loss

n. Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not
discounted to their present value and are determined on the basis of the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

for]
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Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyong the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Classification of Loan Portfolio
Asset Classification Criteria
Standard Assets The asset in respect of which, no default

in repayment of principal or payment of
interest is perceived and which does not
disclose any problem nor carry more
than normal risk attached to the business

Non - Performing Assets An asset for which, interest/principal
payment has remained overdue for a

period of 90 days or more.

Segment Information

The company operates in a single reportable segment, i.e. financing, which has
similar risks and returns for the purpose of AS 17 on “Segment Reporting”
specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Company operates in a single
geographical segment, i.e., domestic.
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MICROFINANCE

LIGHT MICROFINANCE PVT LTD

(Amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3. Reserves and Surplus March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Statutory Reserve
alance as per the last financial statements 1,84,51,047 1,04,08,851
|Add: Amount Transferred from balance in the statement of profit and loss 2,54,57,699 80,42,196
|Closing Balance 4,39,08,746 1,84,51,047
Security Premium
alance as per the last financial statements 5,60,06,171 7.55,49,489
dd: Security Premium received
ess: Security Premium utilized under section 52 of The Companies Act, 2013 1,41,78,111 1,95,43,318
|Cling Balance 4,18,28,060 5.60,06,171
Security Premium On Preference share
alance as per the last financial statements 17,23,41,951 -
dd: Security Premium received 17,23,41,951
ess: Security Premium utilized - -
|Closing Balance 17,23,41,951 17,23,41,951
Profit & Loss Account
alance as per the last financial statements 6,73,26,036 3,51,57,253
IAdd: Profit for the year 12,72,88.,495 4,02,10,980
[Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserves (2,54,57,699) (80,42,196)
|Closing Balance 16,91,56,832 6,73,26,036
Total Reserves and Surplus 42,72,35,589 31,41,25,205
4. Long-term Borrowings March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Term Loans
Indian Rupee Loan from Banks (Secured) 2,04,55,63,841 1,42,71,97,990
Indian Rupee Loan from Banks (Unsecured) 12,68,57,877 12,68,57,877
Indian Rupee Loan from NBFCs (Secured) 1,73,18,43,525 1,19,69,20,750
Non Convertible Debentures -
3572 No's, 13.95% (Sept 18,2019: 3572) Non Convertible Debentures of Rs 100,000/~ redeemable 23,81,33,334 35,72,00,000
in 4 Instalments by September, 2022 (Secured)
300 No's, 11% (Aug 11,2020: 300) Non Convertible Debentures of Rs 10,00,000/- redeemable in 1 30,00,00,000 -
Instalment by April, 2023 (Secured)
150 No's, 12.40% (Aug 24,2020: 150) Non Convertible Debentures of Rs 10,00,000/- redeemable 15,00,00,000 -
in 3 Instalments by September, 2022 (Secured)
500 No's, 14.20% (Oct 12,2020: 500) Non Convertible Debentures of Rs 100,000/- redeemable in 5,00,00,000 -
2 Instalments by October, 2023 (Secured)
100 No's, 16% (Mar 31,2021: 100) Non Convertible Debentures of Rs 10,00,000/- redeemable in 1 10,00,00,000 -
|Instalment by June, 2026 (Unsecured)
Total Borrowings 4,74,23.98,577 3,10,81,76,617
[Cess: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings (2,46,29,79,965) (1,48,53,35,815)]
Total Long term Borrowings 2,27,94,18,612 1,62,28,40,802
The above amount includes
Secured Borrowings 4,61,55,40,700 2,98,13,18,740
[Unsecured Borrowings 12,68,57,877 12,68,57,877
4,74,23,98,577 3,10,81,76,617
|Amount disclosed under the head "Other Current Liabilities" (Note 7) (2,46,29,79,965) (1,48,53,35,815)]
Total 2,27,94,18,612 1,62,28,40,802 |
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MICROFINANCE

LIGHT MICROFINANCE PVT LTD

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

IS. Short Term Borrowings Current
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

|Cash Credit from Bank (Secured by hypothecation of book debts ) 10,01,07,398 10,04,00,026
TOTAL 10,01,07,398 10,04,00,026
|6. Trade Payables March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
‘Trade Payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors Micro enterprises and small enterprises = =
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,39,32,775 1,18,25,020
TOTAL 1,39,32,775 1,18,25,020
7. Provisions Current

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Provision against Portfolio Loans (refer Note 20) 6,48,40,931 3,14,33,339
Provision for taxation 1,04,73,101 12,86,973
Provision Against Fraud accrued during the year 2,28,820 -
TOTAL 7,55,42,853 3,27,20,312
|8. Other Current Liabilities March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Employee Benefits Payable 2,54,20,709 1,18,27,221
Other Ligbilities:

|Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 2,46,29,79,965 1,48,53,35,815
Interest Accrued But Not Due on Borrowings 1,41,52,513 98,59,549
Statutory Dues Payable 1,05,30,834 39,43,174
|Other Payable 7,53,43,488 6,70,40,817
TOTAL 2,58,84,27,509 1,57,80,06,576

59)




<\

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

-

_Light

-

MICROFINANCE

/

sAep OT '3 SYWUON Z0 : SNp JUAWI|[EISU] JO ON

pajiene SIE9AZ: pousd Mumen| ‘9¢‘9¢" -)jueq Wol4 Ues| WS, ueo W,
UEO| 3y 4O INO PAIE3IS S1GIP Y00q Jo uonesayiodAy Aq paunsag Hupeod : 3sa13u] JO ey LSt Ll n et =SSl
6T0Z/E0/ZZ Woly Juswijelsul Ajyjuow pz ul ajgAeday
sAeq G '3 SUWOW zt : NP JUSWIEISU] JO ON
pajieae S1edp § : pouad Anepy - - g
ueo| 3yl JO N0 pAed.d S1qap yooq jo uopesayiodAy Aq painoas paxi4 : 15943)u] Jo aley EFO0LE LR G L O IR uec 183 240H A epucH
8T02/60/8¢ woy uawjersu; Ajpuow gg ui ajqAeday
SYWOW €T : 9Np Judw||eIsu] JO ON
pajiene S1B9\ SZ'T : Pouad Aimenw( - y
UBO| Y3 JO INO PAIEIID SIGIP ooq JO uonedayodAy Aq paunaas) paxi4 : 159191u] J0 ey 00000008 XI-jueg woi4 ueo| wa | sjued J4aQH
020¢/ZL/TE Wouy uswijeisul Ajlyluow St uj ajqieday
SYWO £€ : 9Np JUSW|[&ISU| JO ON
pajieae SIeaj € : poad Almew I reotpt UBH WL UEO! WiB
UR0| 31 J0 INO PajEaID $1ap 3004 40 UoHEIaYIodAY Aq painsag paid 183431 10 312y 866'66°66'S 9TLS8TY'E llIA-jueg wolg ueoj uLd L €4S Jvs3
020Z/Z1/TE wouy Jusawijjelsu] Ajyluow gg uj djqieday
sAeq 62 '8 SYIUOW ¥ : SN JuSWI[eIsu| JO ON
pajieae SIeaj Z : pouad Aluniep _ we'es'vy lIA-)jueg wol4 ueo| Wwiaj €4S 4vs3
UBO| 3] JO 1IN0 pPajeaud S1qap jooq Jo uonedrayiodAy Aq paunaas| Buneo|y : 1sa10lu| Jo dley
610Z/90/62 wouy uswijeisul Ajyluow ¢z uj ajqieday
sAeq 8Z ' SYIUOW 90 : INP JUSLEISU] JO ON
pajieae sIeaA Z: pouad Aumeny| o e UEDILIIS
U] 3141 JO 10 P3IE3ID 1GSP Y0OY JO LONRIBYI0dAY Aq paIndas Supeoyd : 159191u) J0 SeY 9/2°05'8L 1A-jueg J ueoj uLa) €35 Jvs3
6T0Z/80/TE Wouy Juswijeisul Ajyiuow tz u) djgAeday
sARQ OF '8 SYIWOW 9Z : NP JuaW|[€ISU] JO ON
pajeae SI1edA T poliad Ajuney P P .
HED| BIT)0 N peyes s sinse ooaloltic| EsstnodAy An Daies paiJ : 1sa1eu) jo ayey| T9C LELET S68°6L'TR'T A-jueg WolJ ueo| W) jueg eseuey
020Z/90/0€ Wwoiy Juawijelsul Ajyiuow iz ul ajgAeday
shep 1 g SYWOW ZZ : aNp Judwi|[EIsu] JO ON
pajieae S1eDA € | polIad Almew e e
-jueg Wol4 Ueo| WS, enyseseye
UEO| 91 JO 1IN0 PAJE3ID 51G3P J00q Jo uonedayiodAy Aq paundag Paxid : 152431y Jo B1ey SEVILTST 069°€569T APides . HSEIEUEN Jo R
610Z/1T/6T Wy Juswelsul Ajyluow g¢ uj djqAeday
sAeQ b1 %@ SYIUOW £2 : NP JUSWI[ISU| JO ON
pajieae SIEIA T ': porad Ajumen P neral
-jueg Wol4 URs| WS,
UBO| a3 40 16 PajEBIs S1G3P §AOY JO UAHEIBYIOAAY Aq PAINIAG e ey 0ZS‘60'8EZT 08Y°06°19°L llI-ueg Woi4 ueo| wiay | jueg ueypueg
TZ0Z/€0/6T Woi) Juawjjelsul Ajyiuow Hz ui ajgieday
sAe(Q T 13 SYIUOW S0 : DNp JuBWI[EIsu| JO ON
pajleae SIR3A Z: pouad Amen| R .
UEO| 3Y1 JO INO PI1ea.d S1GIP Jooq Jo uonedayiodAy Aq paundag) pax : 1S3131u] J0 aley asti st sts e LIt s IE e
6102/90/6¢ Wou} Juaw]eisul Ajyauow {7 ul ajgAeday
SABQ T '8 SYIUON £0 : SNP JUIWI|[EISU] JO ON
- SIIAT: poLad Amew| I8T'ST'ST'E [-ueg wos4 ueo) way Jueg ueypueg
URO| 2] JO IN0 paleasd S1q3p yooq jo uoneaaiodAy Aq paindag| PoXId : 152191u] JO D18y
610Z/80/0E WO} JUdW][eISUI AjYIUOW tZ Ul 3jgAeday
sHjueq WOL SUBO| ULIDL
Apmag wawieday / uondwapay Jo suual W) WD WNOWY SIRINIIRY

UON jJunowy

Bujmoniog uuaj - Suoj Jo adsad uj papjaodd Ayandas pue Juawiedas / uopdwapad Jo SuLIa} JO S|je12a

(5]




SYIUO\ 8T : NP 1US3WI||EISU] JO ON

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

panea® SIRBAT: poLRd MuMmEW| o0 BVL'60'E6Y IIXX-ueg wosJ ueo) uuay Jueq Soueuyy jlews euer
UBO| 3Y] JO INO paleatd SIGap )ooq Jo uonesaylodAy Aq paindag) paxid : 1saJau) Jo ey )
020z/60/0€ Wwo.j uawjjesul Ajyauow z ul sjqheday
SYIUOW € : NP JUdWI|[eISU] JO ON
- SIEBA € - poniag Ameny EEE'EE'EEE 650'9999'T IXX-jueq Wwoij ueo| wia) jueg ISeaSIIAD Uelpu|
uBO| Y] JO INO PAIEALD SIGAP YOOq JO uopesdylodAy Aq paIndag Pax|d : 15343)u] Jo ey h
1202/20/9¢ Wwouy uawjjetsu; Alyuow g ui ajgheday
{s)yruows g : anp JuswEISU| JO ON
pajieae SIB3) € ¢ pouad Aunmew e P .
UBO| 3] JO INO paleatd S1Gap jooq Jo uonesaylodAy Aq paindag Buneol : 150193u] jo ey SISES SCCERILE e Aueg Letpul
0¢0¢/£0/0z Wouy dwjjeisu] Ajjauow 9¢ uj ajqAeday
m>un_ 62 '3 SYIUO O¢ - 2np Juauwjjelsu] JO ON
pajeae SIEIA T : polad AinieN P P SjUREH WOL4 U] WIS
UEO] 31 40 IN0 P31EaI SIGAP YOOG JO UOREDILIOdAY Aq PAINDIS Bl = mtiTo e EVI'LS'8T'T LSBTV TLT XIX-jueg wolj ueo| usy, jueg D40l
020z/CT/0€ Woyj uawjesul Ajyiuow g ul sjqheday
SYIUOW ZZ : @np Juaw||elisu] JO ON
paileae S1B9), T : pouad Auniey . g LEnLOueoIS
Lea] B3 40 10 pajeais S1Gap 40Oq 0 uoesaedAy Ag painsag L = tie e 098°2v'1L'S O¥T'LS'8T9 IIAX-jueg woi4 ueo| uuay Jueg H4al
1202/20/50 Wody Juawjelsul Ajyjuow {7 ul 3jqheday
SYIUOW ZE : NP JudW(|[RISU| JO ON
pajieae SIPaj g : pouagd Ajumepy
=jjueg Wol4 Ued] wia, 211U 15J1;
UBO| AY1 JO INO P SIGIP YooY Jo uonedrdylodAy Aq paindasg paxid : 15843)u) Jo ajey Uiz e : o s Ul
810T/S0/PT wouy awjeisul Ajyuow gz ui jqheday
000°00°00°8 LYT'VES
SYIUOW Z€ - INP Juaw|[eIsu| JO ON
pajieae S19) 92 pouad Aniew T EC
& D! S]]
ueoj 3y} JO IN0 PAIEALD 5IGIP 004 JO UojEIIYIodAY Aq paIndag paxid : 153191u| Jo ey Ixyieq o tear sl PR 3= 2401
8102/60/TZ Woyj uawesul Ajyiuow g7 uy 2jqheday
AeqQ T '@ SYIUOW € © 3np JudwW|[eISU| 4O ON
pajieae SIB3A g : poUad Aaumepy
ueo| 3y} Jo Ino pajeald s1gap yooq Jo uonesaylodAy Aq painsag paxid : 15aJa)u] Jo ayey Axjueg wolj ueojuuiay, PRAWIN 184 3301
810Z/20/80 Wwo.j uaw[esul Ajyjauow ZZ uy 3jqheday
000°05°LE VT TIL'T008
AeQ T '8 SYIUOW PE : NP JudW|RISU| JO ON
pajieae S1e9) 92 pouad Anie z
UEO| 3y} JO 1N Pa1eaID SIGIP 400G JO UONEISIOAAY AQ PRINIS paxi4 : 153J91u 0 310y AlXHUE] (o1 Ueo) uiiaL Rk
8102/20/0z w0y uawelsul Ajyauow gz ui 2jqheday
sAeq 6 13 SYIUOW O : NP JudW||BISu| JO ON
pajieae SIEIA T : pOLIDd Aumewy P PN
=)ue 0. [-Ja] D,
UBO| 343 O 1NG P31eaI OGP HOOG JO UOpESIPOHAY Aq PAINISG pnny - 13wy 3o ey VIE'9E'9BT SIRIRTIRE llIX-}ueg Woiy ueo| w3y jueg DDI
0ZOT/TT/TE€ Wouy wawjeisul Ajuow ¢ ui ajqheday
sheQ 6 g SYIUO OZ : 2np Juawjeisu| JO ON
pajieae SIEDA T 7 poldd Mumen| ., fenien .
UEO| Btalo NG pateais sigar ¥C0G o HONEISINCHAL A Do e R 160°60'60"Y SSY'SY'SY'S lIX-)ueg Wwoud ueoj wiay jueg PRI
0Z202/ZT/ST Woiy Juawijeisu] Ajjiuow 7 u 3jqAeday
Ayanoeg| yuswAedsy / uopdwepey Jo Swas) | UBLIN)| JUBLITY Junowry suenopJeyg
UON Junowy

MICROFINANCE

_Light

<\
/)

-
-

Sujmosioq uiie) - Suoj Jo 19edses uj pspiaosd Ayunoes pue yuswiAeds. / uop PeJ JO SUIS] JO S|

B



<\

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

-

_Light

-

MICROFINANCE

/

sAeq 0Z '8 SYIUOW § NP JUIW||EISU] JO ON

pejieae SIEAA 5T ¢ popad Aume| PR . o1 3 euor
B6] Bi5) 10 110 PA1EAIS S1G3P Y6OY 10 UBHEIAIOAY Ag pAIIAG e e 09Z'TT'LT'E 1FJ46EN Wy uea] wua) ueyaly
0202/80/8¢ WoJj uawjjesuj Alyiuow g1 uj ajqAeday
shep g8 (sjyauow g1 : anp JuawjeIsu| JO ON
pajieae SIEAA T : pouad Auniey o o
[} 3, 3
Ueo] 31 J0 10 PR1EaI SIGAP 400G J0 uoREsRIodAY A PaINaas PaXIA : 189,33u1 10 31EN 98L8T'19 88.709'86 1FJ48N wou4 ueo] wiaj |18y
0Z0Z/01/£ Wouy Juawjjeisu; Ajyauow pz ui ajqAeday
$JIYIO WOL SURO| ULID] |
€86'T6'28'86 8S8'TLTL'SOT JINVE WOYd SNVOT WYAL TVLOL
sheq ST '8 SYILO £ : 3N JU3wW||EISU] JO ON
pajieae SIEaA T : pauad Aumeny e PR
-jueg Wold Ueo| Wi
Ueo] 21 J0 110 PR1EaI SIGIP 400G J0 UoREsRI0dAY Ag PaInaag PaxIA : 1593301 10 31eN EEE'EE'BS Y 00000°00G XXX-)jued WO ueo| Wia) yueq S3A
120Z/Z0/ST woJj uawije1sul Ajyuow ¢ u) jqheday
|
SYIUOW tZ - NP JudW|[eIsu| JO ON
pajene S183) € : POLIad Aunie 008" ‘19'86" XIXX-jueg Wwoid ueo| wia] | BIpu| JO yue; 1
Ueo] y1 0 N0 Pa1LAId SIGIP 300G JO UoNEdRYI0dAY Aq PN SupeolJ : 1saimuy jo ayey| 90000 SET VL6886 K I 1pul 4O yueg payun
020Z/€0/€T Wouy uawyersul Ajyiuow 9g Ul 3jqAeday
(s)Aep o€ pue (s)yluow 8T : anp Juaw||eIsu] JO ON
pajiene SIB3A T pouad Auniepy oA A T7°08" HNIAXX-)jueg woi4 ueoj ua] BIpU| JO Yueg uolu
uBo] a4} 0 110 PajEaI> 1G9 §00q J0 UORL3RIOdAY Aq PRINSA B TeTeTel'e 8/8°TL08'E 2| | 1pul JO yueg uojun
6T0Z/80/LT o) Juawijersul Ajyiuow ¢ uj 3jqheday
|
sAep QT : @2np JuawjeIsu| JO ON
pajiese SIESA SL°0 pouad Ame| e .
ueo| Y] JO INO PATEAD S1GaP ) 00q Jo uonedsaylodAy Aq paindag paxi4 : 1sauaju| Jo ey QOO0 SEE B L
0T0Z/£/LT wouy udwijelsul Ajyauow 6 ui jgAeday
SYuoWy OZ : 3N JU3W([eISU] JO ON
pajieae SIES) € : poLad Aniey oy e
-jueg Wol4 Ueo| Wi,
Ueoj ay1 0 N0 pa1eaI SIGAP 400q J0 uoREsayIodAYy Aq paindag Suneoyd : 1sauau) Jo 21eY 000°00%L'CT 09Z9€'99°9T IAXX-)jueg wolj ueoj wia) s
6102/60/0€ Wwouy Juawijjelsu; Aljauow gg ui 3jqAeday
| -
sAeq T 'g SYIUOW Z0 - @np JudwW][eISU| JO ON
pajiese SIESA € poudd Aumen| PR .
Uueo| Y] JO N0 PRI S1GSP y00q Jo uonedsaylodAy Aq paindag paxiy : 1sauaju| Jo ey ESEES LY O LIS
8102/£0/TE Woi) uswyelsu] Alyiuow 9¢ ui 3jqAeday
(s}yiuow g : anp Juswiyeisu| JO ON
Pajiene SIB3 € 7 pOad Aunieny SS'SY'SE'S ¥89¥'09'9 AXX-)ueg wou4 ueo| wiay | AW JO jueg [BIUdLO
ueoj a1 Jo 1o pajeald s1qap Jooq Jo uopesaylodAy Aq paundag Supieoyd : 15a191u] JO aleY L J0)jueg [El3L
6T0Z/ZT/1E WoJj uawijjeisul Ajyiuow 9¢ uj 3jqheday
|
SABP T '3 SYIUOW 6T : NP JU3W|[EISU] JO ON
PRIIERE sIB2A T oK pumeny €80°6T'LTE CEL'LB'BEY l1IXX-}jueg Wwolj ueoj wia] jjueg adoueul |jewus euef
ueo| 3y} JO INO paleaLd S1qap yo0q Jo uonedsaylodAy Aq paindag paxiy : 1sauaju| Jo ey i
0202/0T/TE woiy uswielsu] Alyiuow 4z ui 3jqheday
Kyandas| wRwAeday / uopduapay Jo SWIDL weum|  waun) unowy sJejnopsed
UON Junowy

Supmonioq wu) - Buoj Jo Padsau uj papiacsd AApndas pue wdwAedas / uopdwapad Jo suR) Jo S|1Ba

(5]




SYIUOW £0 : NP 1U3WI|[EISU| JO ON

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

pajiene SIE3A € : pOUad Aiune eyt
UBO| 3Y1 JO INC Pa1eaId S1GSP J00q JO uocnesaylodAy Aq panaag paxy4 : 15a120u] Jo 2Ry - TrS'S8VT'T IX-246N Wolg ueo] wial Py aueuly weinddeuepy
810Z/0T/£T Woyy uawjelsul Ajyjuow 9 ul djqheday
(s)ep 1z pue (s)y €c:anp I|E3su| 4O ON
pajleae S183) T : pouad Auniey P .
UBO| 343 JO 16 Pa1eaI OGP HOOG JO UOpEIPOHAY Aq PAINISG e £90°L€°29'T €£6'T9TET 1IX-D46N Wouy ueo] wia) |epueul 18y ueypuesspy
T20T/E0/€T Woyy uawjeisul Ajyuow g v 3jgheday
(s)Aep 01 pue (s)yluow {1 : BNp Juswj[eIsu| JO ON
pajieae SIEA) T : polad Aumewy €69°05°96 6TZ'98'BR'E IX=D4EN Wol4 ueo] w3y aoueuld pasou|
Ueo| ay} JO INO pajeald S1GaP 400 JO uopesdyodAy A PaINdag poxi4 : 1sa.a1u] Jo a1ey ’
020z/20/LT Wo.j uawjjesul Ajyiuow z ul ajqheday
sAeq t 13 SYIUOWAl G0 : @Np JU3wW|[e1su] JO ON
pajiene SIEIAS'T : poliad Aumew an
URO| SY} JO INO PajEAI SIGIP Jooq Jo uonedayodAy Aq paindag paxy : 1sasmu jo ney| 881’9556 YO4AN toid ueen widL HEUELEH
6T0Z/TT/8Z Wol) Juauwjjersu] Ajyjauow gt u| 3jqAeday
(s)Aep € pue (s)yiuow €7 : anp Juaw|[elsu] JO ON
pajieae SIBIA ST : pOlIad Mnlew " arer v
HEO| Btalo NG pa1eais sigsp XCOG o HONETSINCAL A Do e pax : 1sasmu) g0 ayey| T8 TIS6L BLI'SEVO'L XIF4EN Woly ueo| wisy @ueuld puejAa efnpuiH
TZOZ/E0/¥0 Woy) Juawjjersul Ajjiuow gt ul sjqAeday
SYjuop § : anp JuaW|RISU| JO ON
pajieae SIE3) 7 : polad Auney| P I
ueoj 3y} JO INO pajeald s1gap Yooq Jo uonesayiodAy Aq paindag pax4 : 15213u) Jo ajey 0£5°9Z°8C°C HIA-J4€N woug ueoq uuaj MNd elnpuiy
6T0Z/L0/0 Wouy Waw([RIsul AjIuow z ul sjgAeday
sheq Sz ' SYIUOW QT : 3np Juaw|[eIsu] JO ON
pajiese SIED) T © POLIad Mumew PP -
UEO| B3 46 NG Pa1Ead TIGOP YOO JO UOLEBIOAAY AQ PAINSSS T s | B 06S'60°EE"L 1IA-D4EN wouy ueo] wiay 2oueuld pue puejAa] efnpuiH
6102/ZT/T€ Wouy wawjeisu Ajyjuow z ui ajqheday
(s)Aep z pue (s)yiuow g : anp Jusw(jeISU| JO ON
pajieae SIEDA 7 : polad Ainie PP
- 0l .
UBO| 31 JO 1IN0 PAIEID K1GSP Yooq Jo uonedsylodAy Aq painaag paxid : 1sa1a1u] Jo ey E00°6T0ST IADJEN Wiol] Ueoq uLiaL Lo=H
6T0Z/0T/T0 WOy Judwijeisu] Ajjiuow Hz u) djqheday
(s)Aep £T pue (s)yiuow €7 : anp juaw|jelsu] JO ON
palLEhe SIEBAT: POURA MUMEW| e rgery 0SS'9STT'T ADJEN woug ueoy wiay euondez
ueo| 9Y1 JO 1IN0 PAIEaLd S1GIP J00q JO uonesaylodAy Aq paindag) paxi4 : 15aJau) Jo ajey °
TZ0Z/£0/92 WoJj Judwe1su] Ajjauow 4z u| Sjqheday
(s)ep 5 pue (s)y LT :anp J|E1SU] JO ON
pajiene SIEDA 80'C : POUSd Alnie Py, PP o
L] 3} 40 1N Pa1SaI S 4O 10 UOEEIROdAY A pRINIYE e SE6'0F69 S09°29'F2'T AIFD4EN Woud ueoq uuay e21U0I3|3
0Z0T/80/S0 Wouy wawjeisul Ajyauow gz uj djgheday
(s)Aep 0z pue (s)yluow zz : anp 1udwj|eisu| JO ON
pajieae SIB3A T - pouad Aniew s Crp
HEG| IT)0 1N pej=es mase yoaaNo UOjEsstnOdA A DaiaS paxid : 15asm0u) go agey| 26V BYVYE 80STE'SST 1II-D4€N woug ueo] wuay ueyouy|
T20Z/£0/20 wouy wawjeisul Ajyjuow g ul ajgheday
Aandag)| wawieday / uopdwapay Jo suwid] | WAL JUNOWY sJe[napIed

UON Junowry

MICROFINANCE

_Light

Y

<\
/

-
-

Bujmoioq wud) - Suoj Jo Padsau uj papiaocid AAundas pue JuawAiedal / uopdwapad Jo Sud) JO S|jIAa

100|



<\

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

-

_Light

-

MICROFINANCE

/

sAeQ T '8 SYIUOW 8T : NP JUdW|[BISU| 4O ON

pajiene SIE3A ST'F : POIIAd AlmeN P Prr—
ST e o IS I 00 I LTS R A Ay T payy : 1sumu) go ayey | 0000529’ €LL'6E'SE'E AIXX-D4€N WOol3 UBoT WidL paywr] adueuLy UBSPGRN
610Z/20/£0 wouy Wawjeisul Ajlyjuow TG ul sjqAeday
SUUOWY ST : anp Juaw|elsu] JO ON
i SIBIA ST POLRY ey 000°00°05°L 8L TV'TILT 1ID(¢-O46N Wolg ueo]uia ) $3DIAY3S TVIONVNI4 QuvavN
UBO| 241 JO INO paleatd SIqap yooq Jo uonesaylodAy Aq paindag) paxid : 1saJaju) Jo ayey
T20T/€0/170 Woy uawjjeisul Ajyuow gt i jgheday
sAeq ST % SYIUOW ZT : NP JUSW([EISU| JO ON
- SIEBAT : pouiad humen €EV6°06'60°C 686'T8'6TY 1IXX-04€N wouj ueaquuay paywI] SNIJEYN
Ueo| ay} JO INO pajeald S1GaP 400 JO uopesdyodAy A PaINdag poxi4 : 1sa.a1u] Jo a1ey o
020e/€0/6T Wwouy uswijeisu; Ajauow z ui 3jqAeday
SABQ €7 ' SYIUOIl £ : @Np JUBW|[EISU| JO ON
pajieae S1ed\ 7 : pouad Aaniey e
- 0l .
HEG| ifT)0 N3 paise moR ya0a10 Lot odAl AR Do T et 9508%2S IXX-D4EN WolJ ueo] widL pajwI SNIJAVN
8T0Z/TT/EC Woly uawjjeisu] Ajyiuow 4z uj ajqheday
sAep OT 8 (S)yluow TZ - anp Juawi|esu| JO ON
pajieae SIBIA §°Z : pOlIad Mnlew —— Py
UEO| 3Y1 JO 1N p31eaLd 51GSP JO0q JO UoneddylodAy Aq pa.ndas pany : 1SaIIy) JO ey DODLS S ECOSLEEE e Epan
070Z/£/0T wouy uduwijjelsu; Alyauow og uj djqAeday
(s)Aep y pue (s)y 8t :anp Il 140 ON
pajieae SIB3A 7 ° pouad Auniepy P P MmAa
HEG| IATi0 NG po1=e10 nosn yoaaNo UOREsSInOdAN A DS s e e 19925'T9'T ZE6'TTOVT XIX-D46N Woud ueo] uua) asimAauop
0Z0Z/60/ST Wouj Juaw([esul Ajyiuow g ui Sjqheday
sheq gz '3 SYIUOW €0 : BNp JuaW|[BISU] JO ON
- SIB3AT: pouad Kmeny - S0S'ST'BL IIAX-04€IN wouj ueo] wial P11 sadiAIag [eduelld SYIN
URO| 3Y] JO ING Paleatd SIGap )00q JO uopedsaylodAy Aq paindag Paxid : 1saJaiu| jo ajey i ) = )
6102/L£0/20 wauy wawjeisul Ajyjuow  ui ajqheday
sABQ ZZ 1 SYIUOIN £ : NP JUBWI([EISU| JO ON
pajieae SIB3A 7 : polsad Ajuniew a— .
UEO| 3y JO INO PalEaLD SIGSP Y0O] JO UONEIBYI0dAY Aq paINdag paxid s 1sasmuy joaey| SOS'ST'8L IAX-D46N wo.d ueo] wiay P $3013S [ePURLL SYIN
61.0Z/L0/20 WOy Judwijjelsu] Alyuow 1z uj dgheday
sAeq £1 %8 SYIUON G © anp JUBLL||EISU| JO ON
ey LEBAT: popag umen] OSL'ET'E IAX-DJEN o ueo] uuay “PY] SS0IBS [EDUBLL SYIN
ueo| 9Y1 JO 1IN0 PAIEaLd S1GIP J00q JO uonesaylodAy Aq paindag) paxi4 : 15aJau) Jo ajey ° ° N
8T0¢/60/4T WOl dwWjeIsul Ajjiuow 47 U] SjqAeday
sAeq 6T 1§ SYIUOW 90 : NP JIWEISU| JO ON
b e e e | I 069'59%2° AX-D46N WouJ ueoT] ua] “PY1 SBOIAISS [EIDUBLLI SYIN
URO| 3Y] JO INO palear SIgap qooq Jo uonesaylodAy Aq painsag) paxy : 15a12u] Jo ey
6T0Z/60/9T Wouy awjeisu; Ajyauow g uj ajgheday
sAeq 6T 1 SYIUOIN 90 : NP JUWI[EISU| JO ON
pajiese SIBIA T - POMad Auniey P |
oY STIo 110 ) eetis Sican 3000 10 LonEDei odA | A paroet e [ 069°S9'rZ'T AIX-D4EN woug ueo] wuay PI1 SadIAIBS [epueuld SYIN
6102/60/9T wouy wawjeisul Ajyjuow g ul ajgheday
Aandag)| wawieday / uopdwapay Jo suwid] | JUTYIT LY WAL JUNOWY sJe[napIed
UON UnowWyY

Bujmoioq wud) - Suoj Jo Padsau uj papiaocid AAundas pue JuawAiedal / uopdwapad Jo Sud) JO S|jIAa

|101




ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

<\

-

_Light

-

MICROFINANCE

Y

/

Ae T 'g SYIUOW Z( : anp Judwi[eIsu] JO ON

e SIEAA ST poad hume| 9005 96" A00-D46N Wl ueo] wiay eyide) us)ss,
UBO| 3Y1 JO INO Pleasd SIGap jJooq Jo uoiresdylodAy Aq painaas) paxid : 1saJau| Jo ajey E - L
0z0z/20/ST woJj wawesul Ajjiuow gt ul sjqheday
shep 0T %2 (s)yauow 6T : anp Juaw||eIsu| JO ON
pajieae SIPA 7 1 polad Auniepw
r? . - g 17 r’ 0. ) ﬂ
LEO| B3 45 NG Pa1Eas SIGBP YOO JO UBESIOUAY AG PaINdSS e EST'80°SL'Z 0Z6'0Z'¥9'E AIXXX-D4EN Wold ueo] widy lende) puaip
020Z/TT/0T WwoJj uawesul Ajyjauow g ui 3jqheday
{s)yruows T : anp JudwRISU| JO ON
pajeae SIPSA T pouag Aumeny P e
LED| BIT)0 1N pe1=e 0 naep xoaalio Lol EsatnOdA /A Da s paxiJ : 1sasaqu) 4o ayey| 266 0L €S ZEV'9S'SH'T NIXXX-D48N W ueo] wia) lende) nuap
0202/0T/T WwoJy Judwjjeisu Ajjiuow Z ui sjqheday
sAeq 1z 3 (s)yluow g1 : anp juawjeIsu] 3O ON
pajieae SIBIA T - popad Apmey P P o1 s d
UEO| 343 JO ING PO1SAID SIGOP A0 JO UOREISNOAAY AQ POINDSS N e IST0Z0T'T 6E9°TC'9ST IXOKX-DJEN WOy ueo] wiis), levde) puan
0202/80/T2 Woyy wawjersul Alypuow Z ul ajqheday
sheg 9z ' (s)yauow £ : anp Juawijeisu) Jo oN
pajiene SIB3A T : pouad Aumenw| P
UBO| 3Y1 JO INO paleasd 51qap jooq Jo uojesdylodAy Aq paindag paxid : 1saJaju| Jo ajey CSBCHELS HOOSENES e e deD piing 1e35 3uls
020¢/T1/Lg woyy wawyersu Ajyuow g1 ui sjqhedsy
sAeq T 19 SYILOW € : 2np JuaW|[RISU| JO ON
pajieae SIEBA G'T: pouad Aumenw| e
UEO| 341 JO 1O P31EaI3 S1GP 40O JO UOHEINOAAY Aq PAINISG T o s 81I8°LT0L JOO(-D4GN WoJJ Ueo] widy pajw Aeapd [eyde) sn1dajold
6T0Z/80/£7 Woyj Juawjjersul Ajyuow 8T Ul 3jqheday
SYIUOW TZ : NP JudWI[RISU| JO ON
pajieae SIEIA T : pouag Ainie e i e
UEO| L0 NG pa1eai3 sig9p XCOG 6 HONETSINCHAL Al Do Ton R 000°05'29's 00000052 XIXX-DJ6N Woud ueo]wiay [ 1Ts]
0Z0Z/CT/TE Woyj uawesul Alyiuow e ul sjqheday
sAeq 8T ' SYIUOW ZT : anp JUdW][EISU| JO ON
pajieae SIB3) T - pouad Aniew e .
L] A1 10 ING Pa1EAI Q4P 40 10 uoEIadAY A PRI e e 000°65'T¥ 00040°00°S MAXX-DJEN WOJS UBOT UL oo
070Z/20/81 Wwoyy awjjeisu) Ajlyiuow 47 uj 3jqAeday
| z
SYIUOWA /T : @Np JusWi[elsu| JO ON
e SIBIAT: oL MUMEW] e ‘G6°66" IIAXX-D4€N Wou4 ueoq wial )1 duey niwesqe
G| SIRTI0 2110 potesiss it HOOG 10 O e35 OCA A Pl AT 00°000°00°5Z°'T 6V6°S6°66'Y paywn 14 IYpp! qeN
020Z/€0/61 w0l Wawjelsu; Ajyluow 2 uj sjqheday
SYIUOW T : @np Juswi[elsu| JO ON
pajieae SIE3A € : paad Apmeny O0'EEE‘EE'ER TES'BT'EE'E JAXX-D4EN Wl URo| Wid) | pajwr] oueuld IyppniwesqenN
UBO| Ay} JO INO PaIEaId SIGAP JOOq JO uonesaylodAy Aq painsag paxi4 : 15aJ3u) Jo ey o o
6T0Z/£0/£0 wiouy uawje3su; Ajyjuow 9g uj 3jqAeday
Ot : anp I 140 ON
pajene SIES € : pouag Aumey e PR
UEO| B2 45 1N Pa1EaId S1GEP YOO JO UBKESSIOAAY AQ PaINdSS paiJ : 1sasaqu) yo ayey| P00 00'SLE 60E'98VL'E AXX-D4EN Wold ueo] wiay uespigeN
020Z/0T/TE WoJj wawesul Ajjiuow 9 ui 3jqheday
Ajandas| wawAieday / uopdwapay Jo SWId] | FUTTIT LY JUILIND JUNOWY siejnpJed
UON WNnowy

Sujmousioq ue) - 8uoj Jo 1edses uj pepiacsd Ajunoes pue Juswiiede. / uopdwepe Jo sue) JO S|1E18g

102|



<\

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

-

_Light

-

MICROFINANCE

/

|103

£99'99°06'99 £99'9906'9T

QDN TY10L

pajieae
UBO| 241 JO 1IN0 pajeald S1qap jooq jo uoneaaiodAy Aq paindas|

sAeQ OF '3 SYIUOW £T : anp Juaw|jesu| JO ON

S1edA € ¢ polsad Alumepw

paxi4 : 15a13ju] Jo Aley

020Z/80/¥¢ oy uawjersu; Ajuow gg ul ajgAeday

000°00°00°S 000°00°0S°Z

IA-QON

TOVN IVINIS

pajieae
UBO| 3y} JO INO PAeID S1G3P Jooq Jo uonesayiodAy Aq painsag

sheq O€ '8 SO /T : 2np Juaw|[esu] JO ON

S1eDA £ : polad Ajunje

paxid : 153131u] Jo dley

610Z/60/£1 woiy Juswijelsul Ajyluow g€ uj djqheday

VEE'EE'SE'S PEE'EE'SE'S

IA-GON

TOVN IVNIS

pajieae
UEO| Y] JO INO pAeAID S1qap Jooq Jo uonedaiodAy Aq paindas

sAeq OF ' SYIUOW ZT : anp JuawijeIsu| JO ON

SIedA € 1 pouad Ajunjep

paxid : 1sa41u] Jo ey

020Z/80/TZ woJ} uawjeisul Ajyluow 9¢ uj ajgheday

000°00°00°s 000°00°05'Z

A-QON

1011V YINIS

pajieae
Ueo| 3y} JO INO pAes.d S1G3p yooq jo uoiedsyiodAy Aq paindas

sAeQ O '3 SYIWO £T : 3np Ju3w|[eIsu| JO ON

SIeDA € : polad Alunjepw

paxid : 1sa12)u] Jo ey

6T0Z/60/6T WoJj Juawijelsul Ajyauow 9g ul ajqAedsy

VEE'EE'SE'S PEE'EE'SE'S

AIFGON

10181y YINIS

pajieae
ueo| Y} JO INO pAeaID S1G3p Jooq jo uoiedaiodAy Aq paindas

sAeq 1 '3 SYIUOW P2 : anp JuswijeIsu] JO ON

SIedA € : poLad Aluniepy

paxid : 1sa1a)u] Jo ey

020Z/80/TT WwoJ} Juawjeisul Ajyluow 9¢ ui djgheday

00000°00°0€ -

1I-QON

QDN 18§

sAeQ O '3 SYOW 9 : aNP JuaL|[eIsu| JO ON

S1B9A GZ'S : pouad Auunzewy

paxid : 1sa11u| Jo Aley

1202/€0/TE wouy Juswjjersu; Ajyyuow €9 ui Sjgheday

00000°00°0T -

IIFGON

1924 qns (11 J3LL GON) TOVN

pajieae
ueo| 3y} JO N0 pANEeIID S1GIp j00oq Jo uoedayiodAy Aq paindas

sAeq TT '3 SYIUOW OF : 3N Ju3wW|[eIsu| JO ON

SIedA € : poLdd Alniep

paxid : 1sa1)u] Jo ey

020Z/01/ZT WoJy uawiersul Ajyauow gg ul 3jqAeday

00000°00°S -

IFGON

(pung yWIS) 101e1AY

FUNINIG3Q TEILNIANOD NON

€8Y'60°€0°2L 6T6'T6°E8'ET T

SYIHLO WOY4 NVO1 WY3L TVLO0L|

painaasupn

(s)Aep T pue (s)yruow Tz : anp Juswjjesu| JO ON

S1e3A / : pouad Alunjepy . .
paxi4 : 152191u] JO B1eY 000°00°0SCT LL8°L5'8T

9T02/10/ST Wwoly uawjjersu; Ajlyjuow g ui ajgieday

IAXX-D4EN Wolj ueo wia)

paywn 18413 3441

Apnoss

wawheday / uopdwapay Jo suudy | WIIN) WBINY) WNOWY
UON JuUnowy

saejnopJed

Sujmo.uog wua) - Suo| Jo 1adsau uj papiaosd Ayandas pue uawiedas / uopdwapas Jo suu) Jo sje1eg




ANNUAL REPORT

Light

LRLGSTLINE | QOETREOT'T | LPERITILE | £ CLEPSRG LONERTITT | EsLeiLe’s | 0EIE GHIFOETET L | PSR ISTIT [E30,], PukLr)

9L 0T Fe 0RO LY ES RTETEER - HISESLT RIS LLgs LOETaG 08T - GTLOLT RLSSGGTT [E)e ],
0L 0T 9 HR6 LOED BIETEER - NS EELT RIg L0 LDETREET - GTLOLT RLSTREGIT SRS ] - a0d

BlasEYs m.m__n,__W—_.ma—__

LINGELET LTENLTET GIFRG LT £EFNT ETETITL GFTSTLST OFETRY N0 e e MLESEIFT | 9LTPSPeT [B)e ],
RTETYT RIZRE 01 LLTTRE = LLVSH'T nogon'T SOLOF T - LOTTE'L gTSRE0 TMRTIRISU] B3I - A = g
ROEEINIT D6LNE L] LSO 3 T GUFTE ] [IE N HT NI e T LIEOEY 6L1TE'6F SUILIMDY 3L - AL = 420]H
X ] (IR TN L SRR - RIS o ST O ON SEHELAATL - Dt R HE ETa T wiasds sy o) - 3305
O 0T 1F RTFS90L GRTTFROF = EDETROTT TROTCTE LTEGE LT - CHTGE TR CTF RS ERUINL] 39 MIMTIIN @ J] = 0]
07T 60y ETTOWF LT EED - LHBHOT NEETE't OE0+E" 11 - - NENFE 1] IO A S AR 0 D] - Y

SlaEty Sajlaug],

EOTCl1E 10T C0°I[E [TOTCO'LE | SUOLA(] | JE2g Yl J0) EOTFI L0 12O 0O e | suDla]a] ( sucippy OCOTFO L0 SRR

JE SE 2UE[RG | e 5K aoue[eg | e =8 aaavpeg ooneEaldag | ¥ SE UR[Eg | 1M 5K axIeeg JE SE 2UE[RY

A0o[g 12pn]

uoneadda] pagnmunsy

(3503 3¥) Y0|q S5045)

TZ-0207 1835 ag) 10] S)assy paxig 6
LT LAD HONYALDOH MW LIEDEI

104




ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(¢ Light

MICROFINANCE

LIGHT MICROFINANCE PVT LTD
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amowunts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

10. Loans and Advances Non- Current Current

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A Portfolio Loans
Joint Liability Group Loans 2,17,85,03,957 1,20,71,55,685 2,76,23,13,244 1,84,99,39,291
Joint Liability Group Loans placed as collateral towerds securitization transaction - - 3,29,85,306 3,68,78,613
TOTAL _ 2,17,85,03,957 1,20,71,55,685 2,79,52,98,550 1,88,68,17,904
Note: Fixed Deposits are placed to avail term loans from Banks, Non Banking Financial Companies,
11, Deferred Tax Assets March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fixed Assets : Impact of difference between tax depreciation & depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting 11,81,965 6,95,404
Impact of Preliminary Expenses 65,014 1,03,524
Provision against Partfolio Loans 1,63,20,462 79,11,771
TOTAL 1,75,67,442 87,10,699
12, Other Assets Non- Current Current

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A Margin Money Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve manths 9,07,22.828 5,01,04,170 18,08,66,141 17,52,98,049
B. Interest Accrued but not due on DA/ BC & Securitization transactions - - 80,72,427 1,13,80,152
C. Interest Accrued but not due on partfolio loans - - 5,07,33,762 5,03,73,598
D. Interest Accrued but not due on deposits placed with banks & NBFC - - 1,20,63,342 1,01,85,546
E. Security Deposits 2,24,10,034 5,17,84,420 4,13,61,639 6,80,34,322
F. Advance tax & TDS receivable (net of provisions) 2,13,359 41,54,682 - s
G. Prepaid Expenses 1,36,57,515 1,66,23,633 2,55,67,991 3,05,35,367
H. Loan/advances to Staff - - 2,633 1,16,927
L Other Receivables 53,34,482 6,43,753 13,01,06,128 6,13,12,210
J. Other Advances - - 23,31,245 -
TOTAL 13,23.38,217 3,10,658 45,11,05,307 40,72,36,171
13. Cash and Bank Balances March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with Banks
On Current accounts 29,01,44,315 32,11,78,828
Cash on Hand 30,26,774 18,73,420
TOTAL 29,31,71,089 32,30,52,248
14. Trade Receivables March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 1,45,84,945 31,43,832
Outstanding for a period more than six months from the date they are due for payment 49,98,269 74,07,671
Dues from Other Trade Receivable 76,16,652 46,36,350
Dues from BC Partners - 14,44.926
TOTAL 2,71,99,866 1,66,32,785
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MICROFINANCE

LIGHT MICRO FINANCE PVTLTD
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)
15. Revenue from Operations March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest Income on Portfolio Loans 87,91,17,442 50,76,24,560
Other Operating Revenue
Income on Securitization Transactions 2,77,44,858 2,71,49,857
Interest on Direct Assignment Transaction 5,22,68,162 7,40,09,936
Loan Processing Fees 4,51,60,066 4,52,92,138
Business Correspondence Income 10,28,53,710 7,26,27,592
Other Fee Income 1,54,34,381 1,25,77,529
Total 1,12,25,78,619 73,92,81,611
16. Other Income March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest on Margin Money Deposit* 2,50,37,872 1,42,65,555
Profit on redemption on Mutual Funds 13,56,735 1,00,23,010
Profit on Sale of Asset 633 3,306
Miscellaneous Income 8,42,198 49,27,455
Total 2,72,37,438 2,92,19,326
*Represents Interest on Margin Money Deposits placed to avail term loans from Banks, Non Banking
Financial Companies and on deposits placed as cash collateral in connection with securitization.
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/ \  MICROFINANCE

LIGHT MICRO FINANCE PVT LTD

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

17. Employee Benefit Expenses March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries and Bonus/Incentives 28,69,23,100 20,83,13.473
Contribution to PF, ESIC, Gratuity 2,08,26,665 1,69,21,566
Staff Welfare Expenses 77,03,158 60,65,190
Total 31,54,52,923 23,13,00,229
18. Finance Costs March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest
On Term Loans from Banks 20,90,57,561 13,52,89,929
On Cash Credit 40,35,383 20,90,175
On Term Loans from NBFCs 17,47,64,566 14,91,61,554
On Non Convertible Debentures 7,66,10,601 2,65,57,599
On Car Loan 61,494 77,820
Other Finance Costs 2,44,05,917 1,84,54,466
Bank Charges 2,97,707 47,28,089
Other Charges 44225 27,536
Total 48,92,77,454 33,63,87,168
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MICROFINANCE

LIGHT MICRO FINANCE PVT LTD
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

19. Other Expenses March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advertisement Expenses - 55,220
Communication Expenses 48,42,043 33,62,119
Conveyance Expenses 3,65,47,567 2,74,22 821
CSR Expenses 5,37,781 -
Electricity Expenscs 21,96,164 18,34,996
Insurance Expenses 3,71,881 8,87,649
Legal Expenses 7,90,947 7,62,811
Postage & Courier 14,95,507 16,36,313
Professional Fecs 2,97,69,598 2,35,86,474
Rent Expenses 2,66,61,027 2,54,68,188
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 16,73,955 20,91,476
Rates and Taxes 90,19,946 1,14,13,243
Stationery and Printing Expenses 24.25,645 39,98,418
Travelling Expenses 1,87,694 22,18,493
Payment to Auditors (as per note below) 13,87,330 11,31,000
Director Sitting Fees 3,45,000 5,65,000
Membership Reversal Expenses* - 1,14,49,733
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,06,30,357 81,39,495
TOTAL 12,88.,82,441 12,60,23,449
* Membership fees has been refunded to clients as per letter received from RBI Dt. 10-04-2019

Breakup of Payments to Auditors

Payment to Auditors: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Statutory & Tax Audit Fee 7,50,000 7,50,000
Taxation, Certification & Other matters 6,37,330 3,81,000
TOTAL 13,87,330 11,31,000
20. Provisions and write off March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision Against Portfolio Loans 3,34,07,595 1,11,59,591
Portfolio Loans Written Off 1,32,94,763 50,20,833
Provision Against Fraud occurred during the year 2,28.820 -
Total 4,69,31,178 1,61,80,424
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NOTE 21: NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

A. The Company is regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The RBI
periodically issues/amends directions, regulations, guidelines (Collectively
Regulatory Framework) covering various aspects of the operation of the
Company including those relating to accounting for certain types of transactions.
The Regulatory Framework contains specific instructions that need to be
followed by the company in preparing its financial statements. The financial
statements for the current and previous period may need to undergo changes in
measurement and/or presentation upon receipt of clarifications on the
Regulatory Framework or changes thereto.

B. Provision on Loan Portfolio
(Amount in Rupees)

For the Year Ended 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Standard Assets 4,98,27,81,806 3,09,09,29,126
Non - Performing 6,48,40,931*

1,35,95,972 | 3,14,33,339*
Assets 1,29,35,160 & &

*i) The provision determined is subject to the provision prescribed in the NBFC-
MFI Directions. These Directions require the total provision to be higher of (a)
1% of the outstanding loan portfolio or (b) 50% of the aggregate loan instalments
which are overdue for more than 90 days and less than 180 days and 100% of the
aggregate loan instalments which are overdue for 180 days or more that is
amounting to Rs.4,99,57,170/ - (Previous year Rs. 3,10,45,280/-).

ii) The Company has made the provision of Rs. 1,28,12,437/- (Previous Year
Rs.3,88,059/-) as per the COVID Framework mentioned in RBI circular no
RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.NO.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020.

iii) The company has also made the provision for off book transaction, as per the
agreement with the counter parties for Rs. 20,71,324/- (Previous Year NIL)

Excess Provision, if any, of earlier years has not been written back.
**All overdue loans, where in the opinion of the management any amount is not
recoverable, are written off.

The above provision may be adjusted against actual provisioning requirements for
slippages from the accounts reckoned for such provisions. The residual provisions at
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the end of the financial year can be written back or adjusted against the provision
required for all other accounts.

The above provisions shall not be reckoned for arriving at net NPA till they are
adjusted against the actual provisioning requirements as stated in above para. Till
such adjustments, these provisions shall not be netted from gross advances but shown
separately in the balance sheet (Para 5-8 of 17-04-2020).

C. There are no dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise as on Mar 31,
2020. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available
with the Company.

D. Earnings per Share
(Amount in Rupees)

2020-21 2019-20
(a) Profit / (Loss) After Tax 12,72,88,495 | 4,02,10,980
(b) Basic of Shares (No.) 2,50,49,999 | 2,50,49,999
(c) Weighted Average of Shares (No.)
3,37,16,265 | 3,35,23,744
(d) Basic Earnings per Share (a/b) 5.08 1.61
(e) Diluted Earnings per Share (a/b) 3.78 1.20
E. Foreign Currency Transactions:
Particulars Currency 2020-21 | 2019-20
. . . US Dollars 877 1,348
Expenditure in Foreign Currency Indian 65,969 95,685
(for MIS Infrastructure Expenses)
Rupees
Expenditure of Processing Fees on | US Dollars 45,000 -
NCD Indian 33,15,600 -
Rupees
Earnings in Foreign Currency - - -

F. (i) Disclosure related to securitization:

During the year the Company had sold loans through securitization transactions.
The information on securitization/ direct assignment transactions undertaken by
the Company as an originator are shown below:
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(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
iti 44

Total number of loans securitized 10,547 65

.. 11,76,32,04

Total book value of loans securitized 32,98,53,064 .

; ; ; .. 10,58,68,84

Sale consideration received for loans securitized 29,68,67,758 9

Income recognized in the statement of profit and 2,71,49,857
loss* 2,77,44,858

2,34,24
Cash collateral 1,65,00,000 82,34,243
Over collateral 3,29.85,306 1,17,63,205

*Includes income recognised from previous year’s securitisation transaction.

(ii) Disclosure related to Direct Assignment:

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

i i 22,914
Total number of loans Direct Assignments 16,693 9
Total book value of loans securitized / assigned 41,18,33,231 64,84,00,385

- - - i 1
Sale 3 con51de:rat10n received or oans 58,35,60,346
securitized /assigned 37,06,49,908
Income recognized in the statement of profit and
7I4 7 4

loss* 5,22,68,162 Ll
Cash collateral - -

*Includes income recognised from previous year’s Direct Assignment transaction

Disclosure as per RBI circular DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01,

2016:

(Information in respect of transactions in operation as at reporting date)

(Amount in Rupees )
Sr. As at As at
No Particulars 31t  March | 31st March
2021 2020
1 No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for 1 5
securitization transactions




<\
=(C
/)

)

Light

MICROFINANCE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

Total amount of securitized assets as per

2 books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC 21,36,93,572 e
Total amount of exposures retained by the
3 NBFC to comply with MRR
as on the date of balance sheet
a)  Off Balance-sheet Exposures
O First Loss - -
O Others - -
b) On Balance-sheet Exposures
O First Loss - Cash Collateral 1,65,00,000 2,12,98,364
O Others- Over Collateral 3,29,85,306 2,56,98,267
4 Amount of exposures to securitization
transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposures to own securities
O First Loss - -
O Loss - -
ii) Exposures to third party
securitizations
O First Loss - -
O Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposures to own securities
O First Loss - -
O Loss - -
ii) Exposures to third party
securitizations
O First Loss - -
O Others - -

G. Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
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(Amount in Rupees)
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020
Performance Security provided by the Company pursuant to
business 29,54,26,573 | 56,99,43,307
correspondent/ service provider agreement
Cash collateral given and outstanding for the assigned Loans 4,93,33,028 | 11,28,01,385
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
- Tax matter in dispute under appeal - 1,48,090
H. Related Party Disclosures:
i. Names of the related parties with whom transactions have been entered.

Sr. No. Name Relationship
1. Mr. Deepak Amin Managing Director
2. Mr. Rakesh Kumar Key Managerial Person
3. Mr. Aviral Saini Key Managerial Person
4. Ms. Madhavi Gajjar Key Managerial Person

(w.e.f. 12 August 2019)

(Amount in Rupees)

Transactions during the year 2020-21 2019-20
Salary & Incentives - Mr. Deepak Amin 56,25,000 37,50,000
Salary & Incentives - Mr. Rakesh Kumar 32,50,012 61,50,000
Salary & Incentives — Mr. Aviral Saini 27,50,016 48,80,008
Salary & Incentives — Ms. Madhavi Gajjar 5,14,974 3,48,206

I. Additional disclosures required by the RBI

A. (i) Details of Average interest paid on borrowing and charged on loans given

to Joint Liability Group:

Particulars Rate of Interest (In
%)

Average Interest rate on Loans given to Joint Liability

Groups 22.30%

Average Interest rate on borrowings 12.64%

Net Interest Margin 9.66%
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B) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

2020- | 2019-
Sr. No. | Particulars 21 20
(@ CRAR (%) 19.28 [ 20.21
(ii) CRAR Tier I Capital (%) 13.72 | 18.01
(iii) CRAR Tier II Capital (%) 5.56 2.20
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital (%) | 35.51 -
V) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -
J- AS-15 Employee Benefits:

As per Accounting Standard 15 on “Employee Benefits”, the disclosures of Employee
benefits as defined in the Accounting Standard are furnished below:

d.

114|

Short term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the
service including bonus and ESIC employer contribution at the Balance Sheet
date are recognised as an expense as per the Company’s scheme base on
expected obligations on undiscounted basis.

Long term Employee Benefits

Post-retirement benefits comprising of employees Provident Fund and Gratuity
Fund are accounted for as follows:

1. Provident Fund: This is a defined contribution plan and contributions paid
to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, Gujarat, are charged to
revenue during the period. The Company has no further obligations for
future provident fund benefits other than regular contributions.

2. Gratuity: The liability for Gratuity to employees as on the Balance Sheet date
is determined based on actuarial valuations and based on demand from the
Life Insurance Corporation of India. The contribution paid thereof is charged
in the books of accounts. The contribution paid towards Gratuity is managed
by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The Company has excessively paid Rs.6,98,271/- during FY 20-21. Therefore, no
provision has been created as on Mar 31, 2021.
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Disclosures envisaged in Accounting Standard(AS) 15- Employee benefits as
given below:

(i) Defined Benefit Plan :
The Company has defined benefit Gratuity plan. Every employee who has

completed five years or more of service is eligible for a gratuity on sepration at
15 days bais salary (last drawan salary) for each completed year of service.

Consequent to the adoption of AS 15 ‘Employee Benifits * specified under section
133 of the Companies Act,2013 read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 the following disclosures have been made as required by the standard:

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss:

IParticulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Current Service Cost 15,12,964 26,09,887
Net Interest Cost (13,821) (64,769)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (19,32,131) (19,77,897)
Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit . -
Recognized During the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Recognized - .
During the Period

(Expected Contributions by the Employees) - .

(Gains)/Losses on  Curtailments  And . .
Settlements
Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - .

Change in Asset Ceiling - .

xpenses Recognized in the Statement of] (4,32,988) 5,67,221
ofit or Loss

Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation

IParticulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the 49,51,635 42,05,052,
Beginning of the Period
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Interest Cost

2,57,980

3,27,153

Current Service Cost

15,12,964

26,09,887

Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit Incurred
During the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Incurred
During the Period

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment

(Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement)

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)

(Benefit Paid from the Fund)

The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due
to Change in Demographic Assumptions

(29,54,622)

(31,99,392)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due
to Change in Financial Assumptions

(23,349)

13,66,942

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due
to Experience

915,212,

(3,58,007)

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End|

of the Period

44,97,759

49,51,635

Change in Plan Assets

IParticulars

As at March|
31,2021,

As at March|
31,2020

air Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the
eriod

52,16,918

50,37,556

[Expected Return on Plan Assets

2,71,801

3,91,922

Contributions by the Employer

[Expected Contributions by the Employees
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Assets Transferred In/ Acquisitions

(Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Benefit Paid from the Fund) (1,62,601) -
(Assets Distributed on Settlements) - -
(Expenses and Tax for managing the Benefit - -
Obligations- paid from the fund)
[Effects of Asset Ceiling - -
The Effect Of Changes In Foreign Exchange - -
[Rates
Actuarial Gains/ (Losses) on Plan Assets - Due to (1,30,628) (2,12,560)
[Experience
|Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period| 51,96,030 52,16,918
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
Particulars As at March| As at March|
31,2021 31,2020
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the (44,97,759)| (49,51,635)
end of the Period)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the 51,96,030 52,16,918
Period
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 6,98,271 2,65,283
Unrecognized Past Service Cost at the end| - -
of the Period
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the 6,98,271 2,65,283
Balance Sheet

The Principal assuption used in determining gratuity obligation for

the company’s are shown below

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rate of Discounting 5.21% 5.21%
Rate of Salary Increase 10.00% 10.00%

Light
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Attrition Rate For service 4 years and| For service 4 years
below 40.00% p.a. and below 40.00%
For service 5 years and p-a.
above 20.00% p.a. For service 5 years
and above 20.00%
p.a.
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured | IndianAssured
Lives Lives
Mortality Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to Provident Fund and ESIC are included in note 17 “Employee
benefits expense” includes Rs. 2,18,09,973/- (P.Y Rs.1,63,54,345/-) being
expenses debited under defined contribution plan.

K. Employee Stock Option Plan

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the members holding Equity shares vide
Annual General Meeting held on June 23, 2018, the Company has approved
“LMEF Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 .

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the following stock option grants were

in operation:
Sr Particulars
No
1 Date of Grant 23/06/2018
2 No. of options granted 9,84,400
3 No of employees to whom such options were granted 4
Method of Settlement Equity/Cas
4 h
5 Graded Vesting period:
at the end of year 1 20%
at the end of year 2 20%
at the end of year 3 20%
at the end of year 4 20%
at the end of year 5 20%
Subject to any other terms as stipulated in the LMF Employee
Stock
Option Plan 2018

118|
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6 Exercise Period
The Vested Options with an Option Grantee may be exercised only upon or
in connection with happening of a Liquidity Event as per the LMF Employee
Stock Option Plan 2018
7 Vesting conditions
Options granted under ESOP 2018 shall vest within the
minimum period of one (1) year and maximum period of five
(5) years from the date of Grant of such Options subject to
continued employment with the Company and such other
conditions specified under LMF Employee Stock Option Plan
2018.
8 Average remaining contractual life (Years) 3.25
9 Average exercise price per option (%) 10.63
10 Average intrinsic value of option (%) 10.63

Particulars

Year ended
on
March
2021

31,

Year ended
on
March
2020

31,

LMF Employee Stock Option Plan 2018

Employee Stock Option outstanding at beginning of
the year

9,84,400

9,84,400

Granted during the year -

Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Expired during the year

Outstanding during the year

9,84,400

9,84,400

Exercisable at the end of the year

L. The Code on Social Security, 2020 ({Code’) has been notified in the Official

Gazette of India on September 29, 2020, which could impact the contributions
of the Company towards certain employment benefits. The effective date from

which changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be

framed. Impact, if any, of the change will be assessed and accounted in the

period of notification of the relevant provisions.
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Year ended 315t March 2021

Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007)

M. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company for the

(as required in terms of Paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars
Liabilities side :
Loans afld ac%vances -availed by the AV R W—
NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued ]

. standing overdue
thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures
Secured 84,51,09,970 -
Unsecured - -
(other than falling within the meaning of
public deposits)
(b) Deferred Credits - -
(¢) Term Loans 3,91,20,06,733 -

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

(e) Commercial Paper

(f) Public Deposits

(g) Other Loans (specify nature)

Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding
public deposits inclusive of interest

accrued thereon but not paid):

(@) Inthe form of Unsecured debentures

() In the form of partly secured
debentures i.e. debentures where there is
a shortfall in the value of security

(c) Other public deposits

Assets side:

Break-up of Loans and Advances
including bills receivables [other than
those included in (4) below]:

(@) Secured
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(p) Unsecured 5,06,24,50,728 -
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on
hire and hypothecation loans counting
towards EL/HP activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals
under sundry debtors :

(@) Financial lease - -
(b) Operating lease - -
(ii) Stock on hire including hire

4 charges under sundry debtors:
(@) Assets on hire - -
(b) Repossessed Assets - -
(iii) Hypothecation loans counting
towards EL/HP activities
(@) Loans where assets have been - -
repossessed

(bp) Loans other than (a) above - -
Break-up of Investments :

Current Investments :
1. Quoted :
(i) Shares: (a) Equity - B
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities B S
5 | (v) Others (please specify) - -

2.  Unquoted:

(i) Shares: (a)Equity - -

(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds B B

(iv) Government Securities B B
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) Others (Please specify) Fixed
Deposits

33,13,67,822

Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-on-hire and loans

and advances:

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured

Total

1. Related Parties

(@) Subsidiaries -

(b) Companies in the same

Group -

(c) Other related parties -

2. Other than related parties

Total -

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term)
in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

Category

Market Value /
Break up or fair
value or NAV

Book Value (Net
of Provisions)

1. Related Parties

(@) Subsidiaries -

(b) Companies in the same group -

(c) Other related parties -

2. Other than related parties -

Total -

©)

Other information

Particulars

As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

()

Gross Non-Performing Assets

(@) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

1,29,35,160

1,35,95,972

Net Non-Performing Assets

(@) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

&)

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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N. Disclosure of Complaints

Particulars 2020-21 | 2019-20
(@) | No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
(b) | No. of complaints received during the year 85 107
(c) | No. of complaints redressed during the year 85 107
(d) | No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - -

O. Disclosure of Frauds recorded during the year to RBI vide DNBS PD.CC NO.
256/03.10.042/2012-13 dated March 02, 2012

Nature of fraud (cash embezzlement) 2020-21 2019-20
Number of cases 27 3
Amount of fraud 7,97,284 12,66,308
Recovery 5,68,464 6,29,100
Amount written off / Provision made 2,28,820 6,37,208

P. The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate
Social Responsibility is applicable to the Company and necessary expenses has
been made as mentioned below:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the
Company during the year 5,37,781 -

b) Amount Spent during the year
i) Construction / Acquisition of any asset - -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 5,37,781 -

Q.Note on COVID-19 impact on the business

Consequent to the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Indian government
announced a lockdown in March 2020. Subsequently national lockdown was lifted by
the government, regional lockdowns continue to be implemented in areas with a
significant number of COVID-19 cases. The impact of COVID-19 may lead to a rise in
the number of borrowers defaults and consequently an increase in corresponding
provisions. The extent to which COVID-19 pandemic including the current “Second
wave” that has significantly increased the number of cases in India, will continue to
impact the company’s performance will depend upon ongoing as well as future
developments, which are highly uncertain, including among other things, any new
information concerning severity of COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain its
spread or mitigate its impact whether government mandated or elected by us.
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The Company has assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 on the carrying value
of its assets based on relevant internal and external factors/information available,
upto the date of approval of these financial statement. In order to cover the impact of
COVID-19, the Company is carrying a total provision of Rs.648.40 lakhs (including
COVID provision) on March 31, 2021. (For the year ended March 31, 2020 total
provision of Rs 314.33 lakhs (including COVID provision).

R. The Honourable Supreme Court of India (Hon'ble SC) in a public interest
litigation (Gajendra Sharma Vs. Union of India & Anr), vide an interim order
dated September 03, 2020 ("Interim Order), had directed banks and NBFCs that
accounts which were not declared NPA till August 31, 2020 shall not be declared
as NPA till further orders. The interim order got vacated on March 23, 2021 vide
the judgement of the Hon'ble SC in the matter of Small Scale Industrial
Manufacturers Association (Reqd) vs. Union of India & others. Further to this
judgements in accordance with the instructions in Paragraph 5 of the RBI circular
no. RBI/2020-21/17 DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated April 07, 2021
issued, the Company has continued with the asset classification of borrower
accounts as per the extant RBI instructions / IRAC norms for the year ended 31
March 2021.

S. Pursuant to the above judgement and RBI circular dated April 07, 2021, RBI had
instructed all lending institutions to refund/adjust “interest on interest” to all
borrowers irrespective of whether moratorium had been fully or partially availed
or not availed. Pursuant to these instructions, the Company has estimated the
said amount as Rs. 44.49 lakhs and recognised a change in its Profit and Loss
account for the year ended March 31, 2021, on the basis of methodology for
calculation of the amount of such “interest on interest’ finalised by the Indian
Bank Association (IBA) in consultation with other participants/bodies.

T. The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, vide its notifications dated
October 23, 2020 announced a scheme for COVID-19. Relief for grant of ex-gratia
payment of difference between compound interest and simple interest for six
months to borrowers in specified loan accounts (‘the scheme”), as per the
eligibility criteria and other aspects specified therein and irrespective of whether
moratorium as per RBI regulatory package was availed or not. The Company has
implemented the scheme and credited the accounts of a remitted amounts to the
eligible borrowers as per the scheme, amounting to Rs.80.59 lakhs. The Company
has filed its claim for the ex-gratia with State Bank of India as per the scheme and
has received money for the same.
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U. Accounting notes Disclosures

Disclosures as required under RBI Notification No: RBI/ 2019-20/220 DOR No
BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17 2020 on COVID-19 Regulatory
Package- Asset Classification and Provisioning.

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31 March 2021

i) Respective amounts in SMA /Overdue Categories where the
moratorium/deferment was extended* 29,09,227

ii) Respective amount where asset classification benefits is
extended. .

iii) Provision made during quarter four for FY 2020 and
Quarter one FY 2021 in terms of paragraphs (as on June 30, 3,88,085
2020).

iv) Provision adjusted during the respective accounting
periods against slippages. .

v) Residual provisions at the end of the financial year written
back or adjusted against the provisions required for all other 3,88,085
accounts.

*Outstanding as on March 31, 2021 on account of all cases where moratorium benefit is
extended by the Company up to August 31, 2020.

V. During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has invoked resolution
plans to relieve COVID-19 pandemic related stress to eligible borrowers. The
resolution plans are based on the parameters laid down in the resolution policy
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the
guidelines issued by the RBI on August 06, 2020. The staging of accounts and
provisioning for the eligible accounts where the resolution plans are invoked and
implemented is in accordance with the Board Approved Policy in this regard.

Disclosure as per the format prescribed as per the notification no. RBI/2020-
21/16 DOR.NO.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 for the year ended March 31, 2021
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Type of | (A) Number | (B) (C) Of (B), | (D) Additional | (E)
Borrower of accounts | exposure to | aggregate | funding Increase in
where accounts amount | sanctioned, if | provisions
resolution mentioned | of debt|any, including | on account
plan has | at (A) | that was | between of the
been before converted | invocation of | implement
implemente | implement | into other | the plan and | ation of
d under this | ation of the | securities | implementatio | the
window plan n resolution
plan
Personal - - - - -
Loans
Corporate - - - - -
Persons
- of - - - - -
which,
MSMEs
Others 3970 10,54,54,17 - - 1,28,12,437
2

Disclosure as per the format prescribed as per the notification no. RBI/2020-21/17
DOR.NO.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 on "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSME) sector - Restructuring of Advances" having exposure less than or equal to Rs.
25 crores for the year ended March 31, 2021:

No. of Accounts Restructured Amount
3970 10,54,54,172
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W. Previous year figures have been re-grouped/re-classified wherever necessary to
correspond with the current year classification/disclosure.

As per our attached report of even date

For Kantilal Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Jinal A. Patel
Partner
Membership No. : 153599

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:

For Light Microfinance Pvt Ltd

Deepak Amin
Managing Director
(DIN- 01289453)

Rakesh Kumar
Executive Director
(DIN-03430670)

Aviral Saini
Executive Director
(DIN-03534719)

Madhavi Gajjar
Company Secretary
(M.No. A54522)
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LIGHT MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Reg office: 308 Aggarwal Tower, Plot No. 2 Sector - 5, Dwarka New Delhi - 110075
Corporate Office : 310-Pinnacle Business park, Corporate Road, Prahladnagar,
Ahmedabad-380015

Website : www.lightmicrofinance.com Email : info@lightmicrofinance.com
CIN: U67120D1.1994PTC216764

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (AGM) OF THE MEMBERS OF LIGHT MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
will be held on Thursday, September 23, 2021 at 11.30 am. IST through Video Conferencing
(“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“OVAM”) at to transact the following business:

< ORDINARY BUSINESS:

ITEMNO.1 TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
THE COMFPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021,
AND THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
THEREON

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021, and the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and
adopted.”

ITEMNO.2  APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the said Act and
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 made thereunder and other
applicable rules, if any, under the said Act (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) M/s.
M/s. CNK and Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No.
101961 W/W-100036), be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company commencing from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of 30" Annual General Meeting at a
remuneration to be fixed by the Audit Committee and/or Board of
Directors of the Company, in addition to the re-imbursement of applicable
taxes and actual out of pocket and travelling expenses incurred in
connection with the audit and billed progressively.”

< SPECIAL BUSINESS:
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ITEM NO.3

APPOINTMENT OF MR. CHANDAN SINHA AS AN INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Chandan Sinha (DIN: 06921244), who was appointed
as an additional and independent director, pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152
and 161 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
madc thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-ecnactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company,
consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
appoinl Mr. Chandan Sinha (DIN: 06921244), as an independent direclor of Lhe
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period up to Five years.”

“Resolved Further That Shri Rakesh Kumar and Shri Aviral Saini, Executive
Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized severally to sign on
behalf of the Company, necessary documents/forms to be filed with the
concerned Registrar of Companies, concerning the aforesaid appointment of
Shri Chandan Sinha on the Board of the Company”

By Order of the Board of Directors
LIGHT MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Date: August 19, 2021 DEEPAK AMIN
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director

DIN: 01289453
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1. Considering the present Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its
circular dated 13% January 2021, permitied convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM” /
“Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without
the physical presence of the members at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars,
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC
/ OAVM.

2, An explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of the
business at item No. 2 above is annexed hereto. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy
need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant
to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

3. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not
annexed hereto

4. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company is being sent
to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company for receipt of documents in
electronic mode under the Green Initiative of Ministry of Corporate Affairs and for others physical
copies of the Notice of the 27t Annual General Meeting of the Company is being sent in the permitted
mode.

5. Members may also note that the Notice of the 27t Annual General Meeting, and the Annual
Report for 2021-21 will also be available on the Company’s website www.lightmicrofinance.com in
for their download till the date of Annual General Meeting. The physical copies of the aforesaid
documents will also be available at the Company’s Corporate Office at Ahmedabad for
inspection during normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for e-
communication, members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon making
a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any communication, the sharcholders may also
send requests to the Company’s investor email id: compliance@lighimicrofinance.com

6. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open
for inspection at the Corporate Office of the Company during normal business hours (9:00 am to
5:00 pm) on all working days except Saturdays, up to and including the date of the Annual General

Meeting of the Company.
By Order of the Board of Directors
LIGHT MICROFINANCE FRIVATE LIMITED
Date: August 19, 2021 DEEPAK AMIN
Flace: Ahmedabad Managing Director

DIN: 012389453
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% EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

ITEM NO. 3:

Mr. Chandan Sinha, who has been appointed as an Additional Director of the Company pursuant
to Sections 149, 150, 152 and 161 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company, approval of the Board, with effect
from 20t May, 2021, holding office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and is eligible
for appointment as an Independent Director.

Mr. Chandan Sinha is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of
Companies Act, 2013 and has given his consent to act as Director.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Mr. Chandan
Sinha as Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Except Mr. Chandan Sinha, none of the Directors of the Company or key managerial personnel or
their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested in the resolutions.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by

the shareholders.
By Order of the Board of Directors
LIGHT MICROFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Date: August 19, 2021 DEEFAK AMIN
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director

DIN: 01289453
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